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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018

 
(In millions, except per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)

Revenue:        
Premium revenue $ 4,049  $ 4,514  $ 8,001  $ 8,837

Premium tax revenue 110  106  248  210

Health insurer fees reimbursed —  104  —  165

Service revenue —  127  —  261

Investment income and other revenue 34  32  63  56

Total revenue 4,193  4,883  8,312  9,529

Operating expenses:        
Medical care costs 3,466  3,850  6,837  7,572

General and administrative expenses 328  335  630  687

Premium tax expenses 110  106  248  210

Health insurer fees —  99  —  174

Depreciation and amortization 22  25  47  51

Restructuring costs 2  8  5  33

Cost of service revenue —  118  —  238

Total operating expenses 3,928  4,541  7,767  8,965

Operating income 265  342  545  564

Other expenses, net:        
Interest expense 22  32  45  65

Other (income) expenses, net (14)  5  (17)  15

Total other expenses, net 8  37  28  80

Income before income tax expense 257  305  517  484

Income tax expense 61  103  123  175

Net income $ 196  $ 202  $ 394  $ 309

        

Net income per share:        
Basic $ 3.15  $ 3.29  $ 6.34  $ 5.10

Diluted $ 3.06  $ 3.02  $ 6.04  $ 4.68

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018

 
(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Net income $ 196  $ 202  $ 394  $ 309

Other comprehensive income (loss):        
Unrealized investment income (loss) 10  1  17  (6)

Less: effect of income taxes 2  —  4  (1)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 8  1  13  (5)

Comprehensive income $ 204  $ 203  $ 407  $ 304

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 
June 30, 

2019  
December 31,

2018

 
(Dollars in millions,

except per-share amounts)

 (Unaudited)   
ASSETS

Current assets:    
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,253  $ 2,826

Investments 2,070  1,681

Receivables 1,239  1,330

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 132  149

Derivative asset 169  476

Total current assets 5,863  6,462

Property, equipment, and capitalized software, net 373  241

Goodwill and intangible assets, net 180  190

Restricted investments 98  120

Deferred income taxes 70  117

Other assets 106  24

 $ 6,690  $ 7,154

    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:    
Medical claims and benefits payable $ 1,767  $ 1,961

Amounts due government agencies 984  967

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 373  390

Deferred revenue 30  211

Current portion of long-term debt 65  241

Derivative liability 169  476

Total current liabilities 3,388  4,246

Long-term debt 1,241  1,020

Finance lease liabilities 232  197

Other long-term liabilities 93  44

Total liabilities 4,954  5,507

Stockholders’ equity:    
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 150 million shares authorized; outstanding: 63 million shares at June 30, 2019, and 62 million shares at

December 31, 2018 —  —

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 20 million shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding —  —

Additional paid-in capital 240  643

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 5  (8)

Retained earnings 1,491  1,012

Total stockholders’ equity 1,736  1,647

 $ 6,690  $ 7,154

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 

 Common Stock  Additional
Paid-in
Capital

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

 
Retained
Earnings

 

Total Outstanding  Amount     
 (In millions)

 (Unaudited)

Balance at December 31, 2018 62  $ —  $ 643  $ (8)  $ 1,012  $ 1,647

Net income —  —  —  —  198  198

Adoption of new accounting standard —  —  —  —  85  85

Partial termination of 1.125% Warrants —  —  (103)  —  —  (103)

Other comprehensive income, net —  —  —  5  —  5

Share-based compensation 1  —  3  —  —  3

Balance at March 31, 2019 63  —  543  (3)  1,295  1,835

Net income —  —  —  —  196  196

Partial termination of 1.125% Warrants —  —  (321)  —  —  (321)

Other comprehensive income, net —  —  —  8  —  8

Share-based compensation —  —  18  —  —  18

Balance at June 30, 2019 63  $ —  $ 240  $ 5  $ 1,491  $ 1,736

 Common Stock  Additional
Paid-in
Capital

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

 
Retained
Earnings

 

Total Outstanding  Amount     
 (In millions)

 (Unaudited)

Balance at December 31, 2017 60  $ —  $ 1,044  $ (5)  $ 298  $ 1,337

Net income —  —  —  —  107  107

Adoption of new accounting standards —  —  —  (1)  7  6

Exchange of 1.625% Convertible Notes 2  —  108  —  —  108

Other comprehensive loss, net —  —  —  (6)  —  (6)

Share-based compensation —  —  1  —  —  1

Balance at March 31, 2018 62  —  1,153  (12)  412  1,553

Net income —  —  —  —  202  202

Partial termination of 1.125% Warrants —  —  (113)  —  —  (113)

Other comprehensive income, net —  —  —  1  —  1

Share-based compensation —  —  15  —  —  15

Balance at June 30, 2018 62  $ —  $ 1,055  $ (11)  $ 614  $ 1,658

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018

 
(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Operating activities:    
Net income $ 394  $ 309

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    
Depreciation and amortization 47  73

Deferred income taxes 19  (6)

Share-based compensation 19  13

Amortization of convertible senior notes and finance lease liabilities 4  13

(Gain) loss on debt extinguishment (17)  15

Non-cash restructuring costs —  17

Other, net 3  4

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Receivables 91  (315)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 18  (181)

Medical claims and benefits payable (194)  (267)

Amounts due government agencies 17  205

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (61)  349

Deferred revenue (181)  (42)

Income taxes (3)  127

Net cash provided by operating activities 156  314

Investing activities:    
Purchases of investments (1,162)  (914)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 791  1,335

Purchases of property, equipment and capitalized software (20)  (14)

Other, net (2)  (9)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (393)  398

Financing activities:    
Repayment of principal amount of 1.125% Convertible Notes (185)  (89)

Cash paid for partial settlement of 1.125% Conversion Option (473)  (134)

Cash received for partial termination of 1.125% Call Option 473  134

Cash paid for partial termination of 1.125% Warrants (424)  (113)

Proceeds from borrowings under Term Loan Facility 220  —

Repayment of Credit Facility —  (300)

Other, net 27  (1)

Net cash used in financing activities (362)  (503)

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents (599)  209

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,926  3,290

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,327  $ 3,499
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018

 
(In millions)
(Unaudited)

Supplemental cash flow information:    
    

Schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:    
Common stock used for share-based compensation $ (7)  $ (6)

    

Details of change in fair value of derivatives, net:    
Gain on 1.125% Call Option $ 166  $ 135

Loss on 1.125% Conversion Option (166)  (135)

Change in fair value of derivatives, net $ —  $ —

    

1.625% Convertible Notes exchange transaction:    
Common stock issued in exchange for 1.625% Convertible Notes $ —  $ 131

Component allocated to additional paid-in capital, net of income taxes —  (23)

Net increase to additional paid-in capital $ —  $ 108

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2019

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization and Operations

Molina Healthcare, Inc. provides managed healthcare services under the Medicaid and Medicare programs and through the state insurance marketplaces (the “Marketplace”). We
currently have two reportable segments: our Health Plans segment and our Other segment. We manage the vast majority of our operations through our Health Plans segment. The
Other segment includes the historical results of the Medicaid management information systems (“MMIS”) and behavioral health subsidiaries we sold in the fourth quarter of 2018, as
well as certain corporate amounts not allocated to the Health Plans segment. Prior to the fourth quarter of 2018, the MMIS subsidiary was reported as a stand-alone segment.

The Health Plans segment consists of health plans operating in 14 states and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. As of June 30, 2019, these health plans served approximately 3.4
million members eligible for Medicaid, Medicare, and other government-sponsored healthcare programs for low-income families and individuals including Marketplace members,
most of whom receive government subsidies for premiums. The health plans are generally operated by our respective wholly owned subsidiaries in those states, each of which is
licensed as a health maintenance organization (“HMO”).

Our health plans’ state Medicaid contracts generally have terms of three to five years. These contracts typically contain renewal options exercisable by the state Medicaid agency,
and allow either the state or the health plan to terminate the contract with or without cause. Such contracts are subject to risk of loss in states that issue requests for proposal
(“RFPs”) open to competitive bidding by other health plans. If one of our health plans is not a successful responsive bidder to a state RFP, its contract may not be renewed.

In addition to contract renewal, our state Medicaid contracts may be periodically amended to include or exclude certain health benefits (such as pharmacy services, behavioral
health services, or long-term care services); populations such as the aged, blind or disabled; and regions or service areas.

Consolidation and Interim Financial Information

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Molina Healthcare, Inc., and its subsidiaries. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for
a fair presentation of the results as of the date and for the interim periods presented have been included; such adjustments consist of normal recurring adjustments. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The consolidated results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2019, are not necessarily indicative of the
results for the entire year ending December 31, 2019.

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared under the assumption that users of the interim financial data have either read or have access to our
audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. Accordingly, certain disclosures that would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained
in our December 31, 2018, audited consolidated financial statements have been omitted. These unaudited consolidated interim financial statements should be read in conjunction
with our audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Principal areas requiring the use of estimates include:

• The determination of medical claims and benefits payable of our Health Plans segment;
• Health plans’ contractual provisions that may limit revenue recognition based upon the costs incurred or the profits realized under a specific contract;
• Health plans’ quality incentives that allow us to recognize incremental revenue if certain quality standards are met;
• Settlements under risk or savings sharing programs;
• The assessment of long-lived and intangible assets, and goodwill for impairment;
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• The determination of reserves for potential absorption of claims unpaid by insolvent providers;
• The determination of reserves for litigation outcomes;
• The determination of valuation allowances for deferred tax assets; and
• The determination of unrecognized tax benefits.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three
months or less on the date of purchase. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents reported within the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets that sum to the total of the same such amounts presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. The restricted
cash and cash equivalents presented below are included in non-current “Restricted investments” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

 June 30,

 2019  2018

 (In millions)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,253  $ 3,401

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 74  98

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents presented in the statements of cash flows $ 2,327  $ 3,499

Premium Revenue

Premium revenue is fixed in advance of the periods covered and, except as described below, is not generally subject to significant accounting estimates. Premium revenues are
recognized in the month that members are entitled to receive healthcare services, and premiums collected in advance are deferred. Certain components of premium revenue are
subject to accounting estimates and fall into the following categories:

Contractual Provisions That May Adjust or Limit Revenue or Profit

Medicaid Program

Medical Cost Floors (Minimums), and Medical Cost Corridors. A portion of our premium revenue may be returned if certain minimum amounts are not spent on defined medical care
costs. In the aggregate, we recorded liabilities under the terms of such contract provisions of $93 million and $103 million at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.
Approximately $76 million and $87 million of the liabilities accrued at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively, relate to our participation in Medicaid Expansion
programs.

In certain circumstances, the health plans may receive additional premiums if amounts spent on medical care costs exceed a defined maximum threshold. Receivables relating to
such provisions were insignificant at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

Profit Sharing and Profit Ceiling. Our contracts with certain states contain profit-sharing or profit ceiling provisions under which we refund amounts to the states if our health plans
generate profit above a certain specified percentage. In some cases, we are limited in the amount of administrative costs that we may deduct in calculating the refund, if any.
Liabilities for profits in excess of the amount we are allowed to retain under these provisions were insignificant at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

Retroactive Premium Adjustments. State Medicaid programs periodically adjust premium rates on a retroactive basis. In these cases, we must adjust our premium revenue in the
period in which we learn of the adjustment, based on our best estimate of the ultimate premium we expect to realize for the period being adjusted.

Medicare Program

Risk Adjusted Premiums. Our Medicare premiums are subject to retroactive increase or decrease based on the health status of our Medicare members (as measured by member
risk score). We estimate our members’ risk scores and the related amount of Medicare revenue that will ultimately be realized for the periods presented based on our knowledge of
our members’ health status, risk scores and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
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(“CMS”) practices. Consolidated balance sheet amounts related to anticipated Medicare risk adjusted premiums and Medicare Part D settlements were insignificant at June
30, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

Minimum MLR. The Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) has established a minimum annual medical loss ratio (“Minimum MLR”) of 85% for Medicare. The medical loss ratio represents
medical costs as a percentage of premium revenue. Federal regulations define what constitutes medical costs and premium revenue. If the Minimum MLR is not met, we may be
required to pay rebates to the federal government. We recognize estimated rebates under the Minimum MLR as an adjustment to premium revenue in our consolidated statements
of income. The amounts payable for the Medicare Minimum MLR were not significant at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

Marketplace Program

Risk Adjustment. Under this program, our health plans’ composite risk scores are compared with the overall average risk score for the relevant state and market pool. Generally, our
health plans will make a risk adjustment payment into the pool if their composite risk scores are below the average risk score (risk adjustment payable), and will receive a risk
adjustment payment from the pool if their composite risk scores are above the average risk score (risk adjustment receivable). We estimate our ultimate premium based on
insurance policy year-to-date experience, and recognize estimated premiums relating to the risk adjustment program as an adjustment to premium revenue in our consolidated
statements of income. As of June 30, 2019, Marketplace risk adjustment payables amounted to $625 million and related receivables amounted to $71 million, or a net of $554
million. Approximately $390 million of the net amount at June 30, 2019 relates to 2018 dates of service. As of December 31, 2018, Marketplace risk adjustment payables amounted
to $466 million and related receivables amounted to $34 million, or a net of $432 million.

Minimum MLR. The ACA has established a Minimum MLR of 80% for the Marketplace. If the Minimum MLR is not met, we may be required to pay rebates to our Marketplace
policyholders. The Marketplace risk adjustment program is taken into consideration when computing the Minimum MLR. We recognize estimated rebates under the Minimum MLR
as an adjustment to premium revenue in our consolidated statements of income. Aggregate balance sheet amounts related to the Minimum MLR were insignificant at June 30, 2019
and December 31, 2018.

A summary of the categories of amounts due government agencies follows:

 
June 30, 

2019  
December 31,

2018
 (In millions)
Medicaid program:    

Medical cost floors and corridors $ 93  $ 103

Other amounts due to states 93  81

Marketplace program:    
Risk adjustment 625  466

Cost sharing reduction (“CSR”) —  183

Other 173  134

Total amounts due government agencies $ 984  $ 967

Quality Incentives

At many of our health plans, revenue ranging from approximately 1% to 4% of certain health plan premiums is earned only if certain performance measures are met.

The following table quantifies the quality incentive premium revenue recognized for the periods presented, including the amounts earned in the periods presented and prior periods.
Although the reasonably possible effects of a change in estimate related to quality incentive premium revenue as of June 30, 2019, are not known, we have no reason to believe
that the adjustments to prior years noted below are not indicative of the potential future changes in our estimates as of June 30, 2019.
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 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018

 (In millions)

Maximum available quality incentive premium - current period $ 46  $ 47  $ 91  $ 87

        

Quality incentive premium revenue recognized in current period:        
Earned current period $ 37  $ 34  $ 63  $ 58

Earned prior periods 10  12  30  23

Total $ 47  $ 46  $ 93  81

        

Quality incentive premium revenue recognized as a percentage of total premium revenue 1.2%  1.0%  1.2%  0.9%

Medical Care Costs

Marketplace Program

In the first half of 2018, we recognized a benefit of approximately $76 million in reduced medical care costs related to 2017 dates of service as a result of the federal government’s
confirmation that the reconciliation of 2017 Marketplace CSR subsidies would be performed on an annual basis. In the fourth quarter of 2017, we had assumed a nine-month
reconciliation of this item pending confirmation of the time period to which the 2017 reconciliation would be applied.

Leases

Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets represent our right to use the underlying assets over the lease term, and lease liabilities represent our obligation for lease payments arising from the
related leases. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. Lease terms
may include options to extend or terminate the lease when we believe it is reasonably certain that we will exercise such options. If applicable, we account for lease and non-lease
components within a lease as a single lease component.

Because most of our leases do not provide an implicit interest rate, we generally use our incremental borrowing rate to determine the present value of lease payments. Lease
expenses for operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and the related ROU assets and liabilities are reduced to the present value of
the remaining lease payments at the end of each period. Finance lease payments reduce finance lease liabilities, the related ROU assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, and interest expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The significant majority of our operating leases consist of long-term operating leases for office space. Short-term leases (those with terms of 12 months or less) are not recorded as
ROU assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. For certain leases that represent a portfolio of similar assets, such as a fleet of vehicles, we apply a portfolio approach
to account for the related operating lease ROU assets and liabilities, rather than account for such assets and the related liabilities individually. A nominal number of our lease
agreements include rental payments that adjust periodically for inflation. Our lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants.

For further information, including the amount and location of the ROU assets and lease liabilities recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, see Note 13,
“Leases.” For further information regarding our adoption and implementation of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), see Recent Accounting
Pronouncements Adopted, below.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables, and restricted investments.
Our investments and a portion of our cash equivalents are managed by professional portfolio managers operating under documented investment guidelines. Our portfolio managers
must obtain our prior approval before selling investments where the loss position of those investments exceeds certain levels. Our investments consist primarily of investment-grade
debt securities with a maximum maturity of 10 years, or 10 years average life for structured securities. Restricted investments are invested principally in certificates of deposit and
U.S. Treasury securities. Concentration of credit risk with respect to
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accounts receivable is generally limited because our payors consist principally of the federal government, and governments of each state or commonwealth in which our health plan
subsidiaries operate.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined using an estimated annual effective tax rate, which generally differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily because of foreign
and state taxes, nondeductible expenses such as the Health Insurer Fee (“HIF”), certain compensation, and other general and administrative expenses. The effective tax rate will
not be impacted by HIF in 2019 given the 2019 HIF moratorium.

The effective tax rate may be subject to fluctuations during the year as new information is obtained. Such information may affect the assumptions used to estimate the annual
effective tax rate, including projected pretax earnings, the mix of pretax earnings in the various tax jurisdictions in which we operate, valuation allowances against deferred tax
assets, the recognition or the reversal of the recognition of tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions, and changes in or the interpretation of tax laws in jurisdictions where we
conduct business. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities,
along with net operating loss and tax credit carryovers.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

Leases. In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Topic 842, which was subsequently modified by several ASUs issued in 2017 and 2018. Topic
842 was issued to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet. Most
prominent among the changes in Topic 842 is the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. In addition, Topic 842’s
disclosures are required to meet the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. Topic 842’s
transition provisions are applied using a modified retrospective approach; entities may elect whether to apply the transition provisions, including disclosure requirements, at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or on the adoption date.

We adopted Topic 842 effective January 1, 2019, and elected to apply the transition provisions as of that date. Accordingly, we recognized the cumulative effect of initially applying
the standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings on January 1, 2019. In addition, we elected the available practical expedients and implemented internal
controls and key system functionality to enable the preparation of financial information on adoption.

As indicated in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity, the cumulative effect adjustment was an increase of $85 million to retained earnings, relating
primarily to the transition provisions for sale-leaseback arrangements that did not qualify for sale treatment. Accordingly, such arrangements for certain office buildings were de-
recognized and recorded as finance lease ROU assets and lease liabilities. The difference between the de-recognized assets and lease financing obligations resulted in an increase
to retained earnings. The recognition of these arrangements as finance lease ROU assets and lease liabilities will not materially impact our consolidated results of operations over
the terms of the leases.

Software Licenses. In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract, which aligns the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing
implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. We early adopted ASU 2018-15 effective January 1, 2019, using the prospective method, with no material
impact to our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Adoption of this guidance may be significant to us in the future depending on the extent to which we use cloud
computing arrangements that qualify as service contracts.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

Credit Losses. In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as
modified by:

• ASU 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses;
• ASU 2019-04, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments;

and
• ASU 2019-05, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Targeted Transition Relief.

This standard introduces a new current expected credit loss (“CECL”) model for measuring expected credits losses for certain types of financial instruments and replaces the
incurred loss model. The CECL model requires
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companies to recognize an allowance for credit losses for the difference between the amortized cost basis of a financial instrument and the amount companies expect to collect over
the instrument’s contractual life after consideration of historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. This standard also introduces targeted
changes to the available-for-sale (“AFS”) debt securities impairment model. ASU 2016-13 is effective beginning January 1, 2020, and must be adopted as a cumulative effect
adjustment to retained earnings; early adoption is permitted.

We have determined that the CECL model will apply primarily to “Receivables” and “Restricted investments” reported in our consolidated balance sheets. The AFS debt securities
impairment model will apply to “Investments” reported in our consolidated balance sheets. We are currently evaluating the processes and controls necessary to adopt and
implement ASU 2016-13, along with the effects the adoption will have on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) did not have, nor does management expect such pronouncements to have, a significant impact on our present or future consolidated financial
statements.

3. Net Income per Share
The following table sets forth the calculation of net income per share:

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018
 (In millions, except net income per share)

Numerator:        
Net income $ 196  $ 202  $ 394  $ 309

Denominator:        
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 62.1  61.2  62.1  59.3

Weighted-average number of shares issued:        
Exchange of 1.625% Convertible Notes —  —  —  1.1

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  0.1

Denominator for net income per share, basic 62.1  61.2  62.1  60.5

Effect of dilutive securities:        
1.125% Warrants (1) 1.3  4.9  2.4  4.8

1.625% Convertible Notes —  0.4  —  0.5

Stock-based compensation 0.6  0.2  0.6  0.2

Denominator for net income per share, diluted 64.0  66.7  65.1  66.0

        

Net income per share: (2)        
Basic $ 3.15  $ 3.29  $ 6.34  $ 5.10

Diluted $ 3.06  $ 3.02  $ 6.04  $ 4.68

        

Potentially dilutive common shares excluded from calculations: (1)        
Stock-based compensation —  0.4  —  0.4

______________________________

(1) For more information and definitions regarding the 1.125% Warrants, including partial termination transactions, refer to Note 9, “Stockholders' Equity.” The dilutive effect of all potentially dilutive
common shares is calculated using the treasury stock method. Certain potentially dilutive common shares issuable were not included in the computation of diluted net income per share because to
do so would have been anti-dilutive.

(2) Source data for calculations in thousands.
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4. Fair Value Measurements

We consider the carrying amounts of current assets and current liabilities (not including derivatives and the current portion of long-term debt) to approximate their fair values
because of the relatively short period of time between the origination of these instruments and their expected realization or payment. For our financial instruments measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, we prioritize the inputs used in measuring fair value according to the three-tier fair value hierarchy. For a description of the methods and assumptions that
we use to a) estimate the fair value; and b) determine the classification according to the fair value hierarchy for each financial instrument, see Note 4, “Fair Value Measurements,” in
our 2018 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Derivative financial instruments include the 1.125% Call Option derivative asset and the 1.125% Conversion Option derivative liability (see Note 8 “Derivatives,” for definitions and
further information). These derivatives are not actively traded and are valued based on an option pricing model that uses observable and unobservable market data for inputs.
Significant market data inputs used to determine fair value as of June 30, 2019, included the price of our common stock, the time to maturity of the derivative instruments, the risk-
free interest rate, and the implied volatility of our common stock. The 1.125% Call Option derivative asset and the 1.125% Conversion Option derivative liability were designed such
that changes in their fair values would offset, with minimal impact to the consolidated statements of income. Therefore, the sensitivity of changes in the unobservable inputs to the
option pricing model for such derivative instruments is mitigated.

The net changes in fair value of Level 3 financial instruments were insignificant to our results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2019.

Our financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

 Total  Observable Inputs (Level 1)  

Directly or Indirectly
Observable Inputs (Level

2)  
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
 (In millions)

Corporate debt securities $ 1,297  $ —  $ 1,297  $ —

Mortgage-backed securities 249  —  249  —

Asset-backed securities 161  —  161  —

Government-sponsored enterprise securities (“GSEs”) 159  —  159  —

Municipal securities 109  —  109  —

U.S. Treasury notes 87  —  87  —

Certificate of deposit 6  —  6  —

Other 2  —  2  —

  Subtotal - current investments 2,070  —  2,070  —

1.125% Call Option derivative asset 169  —  —  169

Total assets $ 2,239  $ —  $ 2,070  $ 169

        

1.125% Conversion Option derivative liability $ 169  $ —  $ —  $ 169

Total liabilities $ 169  $ —  $ —  $ 169
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Our financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2018, were as follows:

 Total  Observable Inputs (Level 1)  

Directly or Indirectly
Observable Inputs (Level

2)  
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
 (In millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 1,123  $ —  $ 1,123  $ —

Asset-backed securities 82  —  82  —
GSEs 163  —  163  —
Municipal securities 114  —  114  —
U.S. Treasury notes 181  —  181  —
Certificates of deposit 14  —  14  —
Other 4  —  4  —

  Subtotal - current investments 1,681  —  1,681  —
1.125% Call Option derivative asset 476  —  —  476

Total assets $ 2,157  $ —  $ 1,681  $ 476

        

1.125% Conversion Option derivative liability $ 476  $ —  $ —  $ 476
Total liabilities $ 476  $ —  $ —  $ 476

Fair Value Measurements – Disclosure Only

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our notes payable are classified as Level 2 financial instruments. Fair value for these securities is determined using a market
approach based on quoted market prices for similar securities in active markets or quoted prices for identical securities in inactive markets. The carrying amount and estimated fair
value of the Term Loan Facility is classified as a Level 3 financial instrument, because certain inputs used to determine its fair value are not observable. As of June 30, 2019, the
carrying amount of the Term Loan Facility approximates fair value because its interest rate is a variable rate that approximates rates currently available to us.

 June 30, 2019  December 31, 2018

 
Carrying
Amount  Fair Value  

Carrying
Amount  Fair Value

 (In millions)

5.375% Notes $ 695  $ 732  $ 694  $ 674

4.875% Notes 326  335  326  301
Term Loan Facility 220  220  —  —

1.125% Convertible Notes (1),(2) 65  231  240  732
Totals $ 1,306  $ 1,518  $ 1,260  $ 1,707

______________________
(1) The fair value of the 1.125% Conversion Option (the embedded cash conversion option), which is reflected in the fair value amounts presented above, amounted to $169 million and $476 million

as of June 30, 2019, and December 31, 2018, respectively. See further discussion at Note 7, “Debt,” and Note 8, “Derivatives.”
(2) For more information on debt repayments in 2019, refer to Note 7, “Debt.”

Molina Healthcare, Inc. June 30, 2019 Form 10-Q | 15



Table of Contents

5. Investments
Available-for-Sale Investments

We consider all of our investments classified as current assets to be available-for-sale. The following tables summarize our investments as of the dates indicated:

 June 30, 2019

 Amortized  
Gross

Unrealized  
Estimated

Fair

 Cost  Gains  Losses  Value
 (In millions)

Corporate debt securities $ 1,292  $ 6  $ 1  $ 1,297

Mortgage-backed securities 248  1  —  249

Asset-backed securities 161  —  —  161

GSEs 160  —  1  159

Municipal securities 108  1  —  109

U.S. Treasury notes 87  —  —  87

Certificates of deposit 6  —  —  6

Other 2  —  —  2

Totals $ 2,064  $ 8  $ 2  $ 2,070

 December 31, 2018

 Amortized  
Gross

Unrealized  
Estimated

Fair

 Cost  Gains  Losses  Value
 (In millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 1,131  $ —  $ 8  $ 1,123
Asset-backed securities 83  —  1  82
GSEs 164  —  1  163
Municipal securities 115  —  1  114
U.S. Treasury notes 181  —  —  181

Certificates of deposit 14  —  —  14

Other 4  —  —  4

Total current investments $ 1,692  $ —  $ 11  $ 1,681

The contractual maturities of our available-for-sale investments as of June 30, 2019 are summarized below:

 Amortized Cost  
Estimated
Fair Value

 (In millions)

Due in one year or less $ 821  $ 821

Due after one year through five years 917  921

Due after five years through ten years 124  125

Due after ten years 202  203

Totals $ 2,064  $ 2,070

Gross realized gains and losses from sales of available-for-sale securities are calculated under the specific identification method and are included in investment income. Gross
realized investment gains and losses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, were insignificant.

We have determined that unrealized losses at June 30, 2019, and December 31, 2018, are temporary in nature, because the change in market value for these securities has
resulted from fluctuating interest rates, rather than a deterioration of the creditworthiness of the issuers. So long as we maintain the intent and ability to hold these securities to
maturity, we are unlikely to experience losses. In the event that we dispose of these securities before maturity, we expect that realized losses, if any, will be insignificant. 
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The following table segregates those available-for-sale investments that have been in a continuous loss position for less than 12 months, and those that have been in a continuous
loss position for 12 months or more as of June 30, 2019:

 
In a Continuous Loss Position

for Less than 12 Months  
In a Continuous Loss Position

for 12 Months or More

 

Estimated
Fair

Value  
Unrealized

Losses  

Total
Number of
Positions  

Estimated
Fair

Value  
Unrealized

Losses  

Total
Number of
Positions

 (Dollars in millions)

Corporate debt securities $ —  $ —  —  $ 263  $ 1  168

GSEs —  —  —  114  1  67

Totals $ —  $ —  —  $ 377  $ 2  235

The following table segregates those available-for-sale investments that have been in a continuous loss position for less than 12 months, and those that have been in a continuous
loss position for 12 months or more as of December 31, 2018:

 
In a Continuous Loss Position

for Less than 12 Months  
In a Continuous Loss Position

for 12 Months or More

 

Estimated
Fair

Value  
Unrealized

Losses  

Total
Number of
Positions  

Estimated
Fair

Value  
Unrealized

Losses  

Total
Number of
Positions

 (Dollars in millions)
Corporate debt securities $ 509  $ 3  285  $ 412  $ 5  298
Asset-backed securities —  —  —  68  1  52
GSEs —  —  —  127  1  76
Municipal securities —  —  —  87  1  90

Totals $ 509  $ 3  285  $ 694  $ 8  516

Held-to-Maturity Investments

Pursuant to the regulations governing our Health Plans segment subsidiaries, we maintain statutory deposits and deposits required by government authorities primarily in
certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury securities. We also maintain restricted investments as protection against the insolvency of certain capitated providers. The use of these
funds is limited as required by regulations in the various states in which we operate, or as needed in the event of insolvency of capitated providers. Therefore, such investments are
reported as non-current “Restricted investments” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We have the ability to hold these restricted investments until maturity, and as a
result, we would not expect the value of these investments to decline significantly due to a sudden change in market interest rates.

The contractual maturities of our held-to-maturity restricted investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value, as of June 30, 2019, are summarized below:

 Amortized Cost  
Estimated
Fair Value

 (In millions)

Due in one year or less $ 92  $ 92

Due after one year through five years 6  6

Totals $ 98  $ 98
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6. Medical Claims and Benefits Payable
The following table provides the details of our medical claims and benefits payable as of the dates indicated.

 
June 30, 

2019  
December 31,

2018
 (In millions)
Fee-for-service claims incurred but not paid (“IBNP”) $ 1,346  $ 1,562
Pharmacy payable 117  115
Capitation payable 63  52
Other 241  232

 $ 1,767  $ 1,961

“Other” medical claims and benefits payable includes amounts payable to certain providers for which we act as an intermediary on behalf of various government agencies without
assuming financial risk. Such receipts and payments do not impact our consolidated statements of income. Non-risk provider payables amounted to $112 million and $107 million as
of June 30, 2019, and December 31, 2018, respectively.

The following table presents the components of the change in our medical claims and benefits payable for the periods indicated. The amounts presented for “Components of
medical care costs related to: Prior periods” represent the amounts by which our original estimate of medical claims and benefits payable at the beginning of the period were more
than the actual amount of the liability, based on information (principally the payment of claims) developed since that liability was first reported.

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018
 (In millions)

Medical claims and benefits payable, beginning balance $ 1,961  $ 2,192

Components of medical care costs related to:    
Current period 7,069  7,870

Prior periods (1) (232)  (298)

Total medical care costs 6,837  7,572

Change in non-risk and other provider payables 4  56

Payments for medical care costs related to:    
Current period 5,585  6,248

Prior periods 1,450  1,652

Total paid 7,035  7,900

Medical claims and benefits payable, ending balance $ 1,767  $ 1,920

_______________________

(1) The June 30, 2018, amount includes the 2018 benefit of the 2017 Marketplace CSR reimbursement of $76 million.

Our estimates of medical claims and benefits payable recorded at December 31, 2018, and 2017 developed favorably by approximately $232 million and $298 million as of June 30,
2019, and 2018, respectively.

The favorable prior year development recognized in the six months ended June 30, 2019, was primarily due to lower than expected utilization of medical services by our Medicaid
members, and improved operating performance. Consequently, the ultimate costs recognized in 2019, as claims payments were processed, was lower than our original estimates in
2018.
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7. Debt
As of June 30, 2019, contractual maturities of debt were as follows. All amounts represent the principal amounts of the debt instruments outstanding.

 Total  2020  2021  2022  2023  2024  Thereafter

 (In millions)

5.375% Notes $ 700  $ —  $ —  $ 700  $ —  $ —  $ —

4.875% Notes 330  —  —  —  —  —  330

Term Loan Facility 220  6  16  22  22  154  —

1.125% Convertible Notes 67  67  —  —  —  —  —

Totals $ 1,317  $ 73  $ 16  $ 722  $ 22  $ 154  $ 330

All of our debt is held at the parent, which is reported, for segment purposes, in the Other segment. The following table summarizes our outstanding debt obligations and their
classification in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets:

 
June 30, 

2019  
December 31,

2018

 (In millions)

Current portion of long-term debt:    
1.125% Convertible Notes, net of unamortized discount $ 65  $ 241

Lease financing obligations —  1

Debt issuance costs —  (1)

 $ 65  $ 241

Non-current portion of long-term debt:    
5.375% Notes $ 700  $ 700

4.875% Notes 330  330

Term Loan Facility 220  —

Debt issuance costs (9)  (10)

Totals $ 1,241  $ 1,020

Interest cost recognized relating to our convertible senior notes for the periods presented was as follows:

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018

 (In millions)
Contractual interest at coupon rate $ —  $ 2  $ 1  $ 4
Amortization of the discount 1  6  4  13

Totals $ 1  $ 8  $ 5  $ 17

Credit Agreement

We are party to a Credit Agreement, which provides for an unsecured delayed draw term loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility”), and an unsecured $500 million revolving credit
facility (the “Credit Facility”). Borrowings under our Credit Agreement bear interest based, at our election, on a base rate or other defined rate, plus in each case the applicable
margin. In addition to interest payable on the principal amount of indebtedness outstanding from time to time under the Credit Agreement, we are required to pay a quarterly
commitment fee.

The Credit Agreement contains customary non-financial and financial covenants, including a net leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio. As of June 30, 2019, we were in
compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants under the Credit Agreement and other long-term debt. Effective as of the date of the Sixth Amendment to the Credit
Agreement described below, there are no guarantors as parties to the Credit Agreement.

Term Loan Facility. In January 2019, we entered into a Sixth Amendment to the Credit Agreement that provided for a delayed draw Term Loan Facility in the aggregate principal
amount of $600 million, under which we may request up to ten advances, each in a minimum principal amount of $50 million, until July 31, 2020. The Term Loan Facility
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will amortize in quarterly installments, commencing on September 30, 2020, equal to the principal amount of the Term Loan Facility outstanding multiplied by rates ranging from
1.25% to 2.50% (depending on the applicable fiscal quarter) for each fiscal quarter. The Term Loan Facility expires on January 31, 2024; any remaining outstanding balance under
the Term Loan Facility will be due and payable on that date. As of June 30, 2019, $220 million was outstanding under the Term Loan Facility, including a $120 million draw-down in
the second quarter of 2019. Each advance under the Term Loan Facility results in a permanent reduction to its borrowing capacity; therefore, our borrowing capacity under the Term
Loan Facility as of June 30, 2019, was $380 million.

Credit Facility. The Credit Facility expires on January 31, 2022; therefore, any amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility will be due and payable on that date. As of June 30,
2019, no amounts were outstanding under the Credit Facility, and outstanding letters of credit amounting to $2 million reduced our borrowing capacity under the Credit Facility to
$498 million.

5.375% Notes due 2022

We had $700 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (the “5.375% Notes”) outstanding as of June 30, 2019, which are due November 15, 2022, unless earlier redeemed.
Interest, at a rate of 5.375% per annum, is payable semiannually in arrears on May 15 and November 15. The 5.375% Notes contain customary non-financial covenants and
change in control provisions.

4.875% Notes due 2025

We had $330 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (the “4.875% Notes”) outstanding as of June 30, 2019, which are due June 15, 2025, unless earlier redeemed.
Interest, at a rate of 4.875% per annum, is payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 and December 15. The 4.875% Notes contain customary non-financial covenants and
change of control provisions.

1.125% Cash Convertible Senior Notes due 2020

In the first half of 2019, we entered into privately negotiated note purchase agreements with certain holders of our outstanding 1.125% cash convertible senior notes due January
15, 2020 (the “1.125% Convertible Notes”).

In the second quarter of 2019, we repaid $139 million aggregate principal amount, or $134 million aggregate carrying amount, of the 1.125% Convertible Notes. In addition, we paid
$358 million to settle the 1.125% Convertible Notes’ embedded cash conversion option feature at fair value (which is a derivative liability we refer to as the “1.125% Conversion
Option”).

In the first quarter of 2019, we repaid $46 million aggregate principal amount, or $44 million aggregate carrying amount, of the 1.125% Convertible Notes. In addition, we paid $115
million to settle the 1.125% Convertible Notes’ embedded cash conversion option feature at fair value.

In the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, we recorded gains on debt extinguishment of $14 million and $17 million, respectively, for the 1.125% Convertible Notes
repayments (net of accelerated original issuance discount amortization), primarily relating to a favorable mark to market valuations on the partial terminations of the Call Spread
Overlay executed in connection with the related debt repayments. These gains are reported in “Other (income) expenses, net” in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. No common shares were issued in connection with the transaction.

In connection with the 1.125% Convertible Notes purchases, we also entered into privately negotiated agreements in the first and second quarters of 2019, to partially terminate the
Call Spread Overlay, defined and further discussed in Note 8, “Derivatives,” and Note 9, “Stockholders' Equity.” The net cash proceeds from the Call Spread Overlay partial
termination transactions partially offset the cash paid to settle the 1.125% Convertible Notes.

Following the transactions described above, $67 million aggregate principal amount of the 1.125% Convertible Notes were outstanding at June 30, 2019. Interest at a rate of
1.125% per annum is payable semiannually in arrears on January 15 and July 15. The 1.125% Convertible Notes are convertible only into cash, and not into shares of our common
stock or any other securities. The initial conversion rate is 24.5277 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount, or approximately $40.77 per share of our common
stock. Upon conversion, in lieu of receiving shares of our common stock, a holder will receive an amount in cash, per $1,000 principal amount, equal to the settlement amount,
determined in the manner set forth in the indenture. We may not redeem the 1.125% Convertible Notes prior to the maturity date. The 1.125% Convertible Notes mature on January
15, 2020; therefore, they are reported in current portion of long-term debt.

Concurrent with the issuance of the 1.125% Convertible Notes in 2013, the 1.125% Conversion Option was separated from the 1.125% Convertible Notes and accounted for
separately as a derivative liability, with changes in
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fair value reported in our consolidated statements of income until the 1.125% Conversion Option fully settles or expires. This initial liability simultaneously reduced the carrying value
of the 1.125% Convertible Notes’ principal amount (effectively an original issuance discount), which is amortized to the principal amount through the recognition of non-cash interest
expense over the expected life of the debt. The effective interest rate of 6% approximates the interest rate we would have incurred had we issued nonconvertible debt with
otherwise similar terms. As of June 30, 2019, the 1.125% Convertible Notes had a remaining amortization period of less than one year, and their ‘if-converted’ value exceeded their
principal amount by approximately $157 million and $581 million as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.

Cross-Default Provisions

The indentures governing the 4.875% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and the 1.125% Convertible Notes contain cross-default provisions that are triggered upon default by us or any of
our subsidiaries on any indebtedness in excess of the amount specified in the applicable indenture.

8. Derivatives

The following table summarizes the fair values and the presentation of our derivative financial instruments (defined and discussed individually below) in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets:

 Balance Sheet Location  
June 30, 

2019  
December 31,

2018

   (In millions)

Derivative asset:      
1.125% Call Option Current assets: Derivative asset  $ 169  $ 476

Derivative liability:      
1.125% Conversion Option Current liabilities: Derivative liability  $ 169  $ 476

Our derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge treatment; therefore, the change in fair value of these instruments is recognized immediately in our consolidated
statements of income, and reported in “Other (income) expenses, net.” Gains and losses for our derivative financial instruments are presented individually in the accompanying
consolidated statements of cash flows, “Supplemental cash flow information.”

1.125% Convertible Notes Call Spread Overlay

Concurrent with the issuance of the 1.125% Convertible Notes in 2013, we entered into privately negotiated hedge transactions (collectively, the 1.125% Call Option) and warrant
transactions (collectively, the 1.125% Warrants), with certain of the initial purchasers of the 1.125% Convertible Notes (the Counterparties). We refer to these transactions
collectively as the Call Spread Overlay. Under the Call Spread Overlay, the cost of the 1.125% Call Option we purchased to cover the cash outlay upon conversion of the 1.125%
Convertible Notes was reduced by proceeds from the sale of the 1.125% Warrants. Assuming full performance by the Counterparties (and 1.125% Warrants strike prices in excess
of the conversion price of the 1.125% Convertible Notes), these transactions are intended to offset cash payments in excess of the principal amount of the 1.125% Convertible
Notes due upon any conversion of such notes.

In the first and second quarters of 2019, in connection with the 1.125% Convertible Notes purchases (described in Note 7, “Debt”), we entered into privately negotiated termination
agreements with each of the Counterparties to partially terminate the Call Spread Overlay, in notional amounts corresponding to the aggregate principal amount of the 1.125%
Convertible Notes purchased. In the second quarter of 2019, this resulted in our receipt of $358 million for the settlement of the 1.125% Call Option (which is a derivative asset), and
the payment of $321 million for the partial termination of the 1.125% Warrants, for an aggregate net cash receipt of $37 million from the Counterparties.

In the first quarter of 2019, this resulted in our receipt of $115 million for the settlement of the 1.125% Call Option, and the payment of $103 million for the partial termination of the
1.125% Warrants, for an aggregate net cash receipt of $12 million from the Counterparties.

1.125% Call Option

The 1.125% Call Option, which is indexed to our common stock, is a derivative asset that requires mark-to-market accounting treatment due to cash settlement features until the
1.125% Call Option settles or expires. For further
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discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair value of the 1.125% Call Option, refer to Note 4, “Fair Value Measurements.”

1.125% Conversion Option

The embedded cash conversion option within the 1.125% Convertible Notes is accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our
consolidated statements of income until the cash conversion option settles or expires. For further discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair value of the 1.125% Conversion
Option, refer to Note 4, “Fair Value Measurements.”

As of June 30, 2019, the 1.125% Call Option and the 1.125% Conversion Option were classified as a current asset and current liability, respectively, because the 1.125%
Convertible Notes mature on January 15, 2020, as described in Note 7, “Debt.”

9. Stockholders' Equity
1.125% Warrants

In connection with the Call Spread Overlay transaction described in Note 8, “Derivatives,” in 2013, we issued 13.5 million warrants with a strike price of $53.8475 per share. Under
certain circumstances, beginning in April 2020, if the price of our common stock exceeds the strike price of the 1.125% Warrants, we will be obligated to issue shares of our
common stock subject to a share delivery cap. The 1.125% Warrants could separately have a dilutive effect to the extent that the market value per share of our common stock
exceeds the applicable strike price of the 1.125% Warrants. Refer to Note 3, “Net Income per Share,” for dilution information for the periods presented. We will not receive any
additional proceeds if the 1.125% Warrants are exercised. Following the transactions described below, 1.7 million of the 1.125% Warrants remain outstanding.

As described in Note 8, “Derivatives,” in the first half of 2019, we entered into privately negotiated termination agreements with each of the Counterparties to partially terminate the
Call Spread Overlay, in notional amounts corresponding to the aggregate principal amount of the 1.125% Convertible Notes purchased.

In the second quarter of 2019, we paid $321 million to the Counterparties for the termination of 3.4 million of the 1.125% Warrants outstanding, which resulted in a reduction of
additional paid-in-capital for the same amount.

In the first quarter of 2019, we paid $103 million to the Counterparties for the termination of 1.1 million of the 1.125% Warrants outstanding, which resulted in a reduction of
additional paid-in-capital for the same amount.

Share-Based Compensation

In connection with our employee stock plans, approximately 180,000 shares of common stock vested or were purchased, net of shares used to settle employees’ income tax
obligations, during the six months ended June 30, 2019.

Share-based compensation is recorded to “General and administrative expenses” in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Total share-based compensation
expense amounted to $10 million and $7 million, respectively, in the three months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. Total share-based compensation expense amounted to $19
million and $13 million, respectively, in the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Equity Incentive Plan

In the second quarter of 2019, stockholders approved the Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2019 EIP”). The 2019 EIP provides for awards, in the form of
restricted stock awards, performance units, stock options, and other stock– or cash–based awards, to eligible persons who perform services for us. The 2019 EIP will continue in
effect until its termination by the board of directors; provided, however, that all awards will be granted no later than May 8, 2029. Concurrent with the adoption of the 2019 EIP, the
Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan was amended, restated and merged into the 2019 EIP. A maximum of 2.9 million shares of our common stock may be issued
under the 2019 EIP.

As of June 30, 2019, there was $62 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested restricted stock awards (“RSAs”), and performance stock units
(“PSUs”), which we expect to recognize over remaining weighted-average periods of 2.7 years and 2.1 years, respectively. This unrecognized compensation cost assumes an
estimated forfeiture rate of 15.2% for non-executive employees as of June 30, 2019.
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Also as of June 30, 2019, there was $7 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested stock options, which we expect to recognize over a weighted-
average period of 1.3 years. No stock options were granted or exercised in the six months ended June 30, 2019.

Activity for RSAs, performance stock awards (“PSAs”) and PSUs is summarized below:

 RSAs  PSAs  PSUs  Total  

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Unvested balance, December 31, 2018 399,795  3,132  201,383  604,310  $ 71.50

Granted 218,245  —  138,994  357,239  137.42

Vested (129,526)  (3,132)  (10,528)  (143,186)  70.57

Forfeited (29,597)  —  (5,010)  (34,607)  83.05

Unvested balance, June 30, 2019 458,917  —  324,839  783,756  $ 101.20

The aggregate fair values of RSAs, PSUs and PSAs granted and vested are presented in the following table:

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018

 (In millions)

Granted:    
RSAs $ 30  $ 25

PSUs 19  16

Total granted $ 49  $ 41

Vested:    
RSAs $ 18  $ 14

PSUs 2  —

PSAs —  3

Total vested $ 20  $ 17

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2019, stockholders approved the 2019 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “2019 ESPP”), which superseded the 2011 ESPP. A maximum of 3.0 million shares of our
common stock may be issued under the 2019 ESPP, the terms of which are substantially similar to the Molina Healthcare, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “2011 ESPP”).
The 2019 ESPP will continue until the earliest of: termination of the 2019 ESPP by the board of directors (which may occur at any time); issuance of all of the shares reserved for
issuance under the 2019 ESPP; or May 9, 2029.

10. Restructuring Costs
Restructuring costs are reported by the same name in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

IT Restructuring Plan

Management is focused on a margin recovery plan that includes identification and implementation of various profit improvement initiatives. To that end, we began a plan to
restructure our information technology department (the “IT Restructuring Plan”) in 2018. In early 2019, we entered into services agreements with our outsourcing vendor under
which they manage certain of our information technology services.

We expect to complete the IT Restructuring Plan by the end of 2019, incurring cumulative total costs of approximately $15 million in the Other segment. This estimate of cumulative
total costs is lower than the $20 million reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018, because more of our IT employees transitioned to our
outsourcing vendor than originally contemplated. Once employed by our outsourcing vendor, such employees are no longer included in the IT Restructuring Plan, which therefore
resulted in lower one-time termination costs.

As of December 31, 2018, there was $6 million accrued under the IT Restructuring Plan, primarily for one-time termination benefits that require cash settlement. In the first half of
2019, we incurred $2 million of other
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restructuring costs, and paid $5 million to settle one-time termination benefits and $2 million to settle other restructuring costs. As of June 30, 2019, there was $1 million accrued
under the IT Restructuring Plan.

As of June 30, 2019, we had incurred cumulative restructuring costs under the IT Restructuring Plan of $11 million, including $7 million of one-time termination benefits and $4
million of other restructuring costs (primarily consulting fees).

2017 Restructuring Plan

As of December 31, 2018, accrued liabilities of $18 million remained for the restructuring and profitability improvement plan approved by the board of directors in June 2017 (the
“2017 Restructuring Plan”). In the first half of 2019, we incurred $3 million of restructuring costs for adjustments to previously recorded lease contract termination costs, and paid $4
million to settle one-time termination and lease contract termination costs. As of June 30, 2019, accrued liabilities of $17 million remained for lease contract termination costs under
the 2017 Restructuring Plan. We expect to continue to settle these liabilities through 2025, unless the leases are terminated sooner.

11. Segments
We currently have two reportable segments: our Health Plans segment and our Other segment. Our reportable segments are consistent with how we currently manage the business
and view the markets we serve.

Description of Earnings Measures for Reportable Segments

Margin is the appropriate earnings measure for our reportable segments, based on how our chief operating decision maker currently reviews results, assesses performance, and
allocates resources.

Margin for our Health Plans segment is referred to as “Medical Margin,” which represents the amount earned after medical costs are deducted from premium revenue. The medical
care ratio represents the amount of medical care costs as a percentage of premium revenue, and is one of the key metrics used to assess the performance of the segments.
Therefore, the underlying Medical Margin is the most important measure of earnings reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.

The following table presents total revenue by segment. Inter-segment revenue was insignificant for all periods presented.

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018

 (In millions)

Total revenue:        
Health Plans $ 4,190  $ 4,752  $ 8,307  $ 9,261

Other 3  131  5  268

Consolidated $ 4,193  $ 4,883  $ 8,312  $ 9,529
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The following table reconciles margin by segment to consolidated income before income taxes:

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018

 (In millions)

Margin:        
Health Plans $ 583  $ 664  $ 1,164  $ 1,265

Other —  9  —  23

Total margin 583  673  1,164  1,288

Add: other operating revenues (1) 144  242  311  431

Less: other operating expenses (2) (462)  (573)  (930)  (1,155)

Operating income 265  342  545  564

Other expenses, net 8  37  28  80

Income before income tax expense $ 257  $ 305  $ 517  $ 484

______________________
(1) Other operating revenues include premium tax revenue, health insurer fees reimbursed, and investment income and other revenue.
(2) Other operating expenses include general and administrative expenses, premium tax expenses, health insurer fees, depreciation and amortization, and restructuring costs.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments. Penalties associated with violations of these laws and regulations
include significant fines, exclusion from participating in publicly funded programs, and the repayment of previously collected revenues.

In the ordinary course of business we are involved in legal actions, some of which seek monetary damages, including claims for punitive damages, which are not covered by
insurance. We have accrued liabilities for certain matters for which we deem the loss to be both probable and reasonably estimable, but the outcome of legal actions is inherently
uncertain and our estimates of such losses could change as a result of further developments of these matters. For certain pending matters, accruals have not been established
because such matters have not progressed sufficiently through discovery or factual development to enable us to reasonably estimate a range of possible loss. An adverse
determination in one or more of these pending matters could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

States’ Budgets

Nearly all of our premium revenues come from the joint federal and state funding of the Medicaid and Children’s Health Insurance Program (“CHIP”) programs. The states and
Commonwealth in which we operate our health plans regularly face significant budgetary pressures.

13. Leases
As discussed in Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies,” we elected the Topic 842 transition provision that allows entities to continue to apply the legacy guidance in Topic 840,
Leases, including its disclosure requirements, in the comparative periods presented in the year of adoption. Accordingly, the Topic 842 disclosures below are presented as of and for
the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2019, only.

We are a party to operating and finance leases primarily for our corporate and health plan offices. Our operating leases have remaining lease terms up to 10 years, some of which
include options to extend the leases for up to 10 years. As of June 30, 2019, the weighted average remaining operating lease term is 4 years.

Our finance leases have remaining lease terms of 3 years to 19 years, some of which include options to extend the leases for up to 25 years. As of June 30, 2019, the weighted
average remaining finance lease term is 17 years.
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As of June 30, 2019, the weighted-average discount rate used to compute the present value of lease payments was 5.5% for operating lease liabilities, and 6.6% for finance lease
liabilities. The components of lease expense were as follows:

 
Three Months Ended June

30, 2019  
Six Months Ended June

30, 2019

 (In millions)

Operating lease expense $ 8  $ 17

    

Finance lease expense:    
Amortization of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets $ 4  $ 8

Interest on lease liabilities 4  8

Total finance lease expense $ 8  $ 16

Supplemental consolidated cash flow information related to leases follows:

 
Six Months Ended June

30, 2019

 (In millions)

Cash used in operating activities:  
Operating leases $ 19
Finance leases 7

Cash used in financing activities:  
Finance leases 3

ROU assets recognized in exchange for lease obligations:  
Operating leases 95
Finance leases 241

Supplemental information related to leases, including location of amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, follows:

 June 30, 2019

 (In millions)

Operating leases:  
ROU assets  

Other assets $ 77

Lease liabilities  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (current) 29
Other long-term liabilities (non-current) 56

Total operating lease liabilities $ 85

Finance leases:  
ROU assets  

Property, equipment, and capitalized software, net $ 233

Lease liabilities  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (current) $ 7
Finance lease liabilities (non-current) 232

Total finance lease liabilities $ 239
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Maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2019, were as follows:

 Operating Leases  Finance Leases

 (In millions)

2019 (excluding the six months ended June 30, 2019) $ 18  $ 11

2020 28  22

2021 18  22

2022 12  21

2023 10  21

Thereafter 9  311

Total lease payments 95  408

Less imputed interest (10)  (169)

Totals $ 85  $ 239
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements regarding our business, financial condition, and results of operations within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, or Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or Securities Exchange Act. We intend such forward-looking statements to be
covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and we are including this statement for
purposes of complying with these safe harbor provisions. All statements included in this quarterly report, other than statements of historical fact, may be deemed to be forward-
looking statements for purposes of the Securities Act and the Securities Exchange Act. Without limiting the foregoing, we use the words “anticipate(s),” “believe(s),” “estimate(s),”
“expect(s),” “intend(s),” “may,” “plan(s),” “project(s),” “will,” “would,” “could,” “should” and similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain these identifying words. We cannot guarantee that we will actually achieve the plans, intentions, or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements and,
accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. We caution you that we do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements
made by us. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results in future periods to differ materially from those
projected, estimated, or expected. Those known risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following:

• the numerous political, judicial and market-based uncertainties associated with the Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”) or “Obamacare,” including the ultimate outcome on appeal of
the Texas et al. v. U.S. et al. matter;

• the market dynamics surrounding the ACA Marketplaces, including but not limited to uncertainties associated with risk adjustment requirements, the potential for
disproportionate enrollment of higher acuity members, the discontinuation of premium tax credits, and the adequacy of agreed rates;

• subsequent adjustments to reported premium revenue based upon subsequent developments or new information, including changes to estimated amounts payable or
receivable related to Marketplace risk adjustment;

• effective management of our medical costs;
• our ability to predict with a reasonable degree of accuracy utilization rates, including utilization rates associated with seasonal flu patterns or other newly emergent diseases;
• significant budget pressures on state governments and their potential inability to maintain current rates, to implement expected rate increases, or to maintain existing benefit

packages or membership eligibility thresholds or criteria;
• the full reimbursement of the ACA health insurer fee, or HIF;
• the success of our efforts to retain existing or awarded government contracts, including the success of any requests for proposal protest filings or defenses, including the Texas

STAR+PLUS and STAR/CHIP RFPs;
• the ability to manage our operations, including maintaining and creating adequate internal systems and controls relating to authorizations, approvals, provider payments, and

the overall success of our care management initiatives;
• our receipt of adequate premium rates to support increasing pharmacy costs, including costs associated with specialty drugs and costs resulting from formulary changes that

allow the option of higher-priced non-generic drugs;
• our ability to operate profitably in an environment where the trend in premium rate increases lags behind the trend in increasing medical costs;
• the interpretation and implementation of federal or state medical cost expenditure floors, administrative cost and profit ceilings, premium stabilization programs, profit sharing

arrangements, and risk adjustment provisions and requirements;
• our estimates of amounts owed for such cost expenditure floors, administrative cost and profit ceilings, premium stabilization programs, profit-sharing arrangements, and risk

adjustment provisions;
• the Medicaid expansion medical cost corridor, and any other retroactive adjustment to revenue where methodologies and procedures are subject to interpretation or dependent

upon information about the health status of participants other than Molina members;
• the interpretation and implementation of at-risk premium rules and state contract performance requirements regarding the achievement of certain quality measures, and our

ability to recognize revenue amounts associated therewith;
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• cyber-attacks or other privacy or data security incidents resulting in an inadvertent unauthorized disclosure of protected health information;
• the success of our health plan in Puerto Rico, including the resolution of the debt crisis and the effect of the PROMESA law, the effects of political and regulatory instability, and

the impact of any future significant weather events;
• the success and renewal of our duals demonstration programs in California, Illinois, Michigan, Ohio, South Carolina, and Texas;
• the accurate estimation of incurred but not reported or paid medical costs across our health plans;
• efforts by states to recoup previously paid and recognized premium amounts;
• complications, member confusion, eligibility re-determinations, or enrollment backlogs related to the annual renewal of Medicaid coverage;
• government audits, reviews, comment letters, or potential investigations, and any fine, sanction, enrollment freeze, monitoring program, or premium recovery that may result

therefrom;
• changes with respect to our provider contracts and the loss of providers;
• approval by state regulators of dividends and distributions by our health plan subsidiaries;
• changes in funding under our contracts as a result of regulatory changes, programmatic adjustments, or other reforms;
• high dollar claims related to catastrophic illness;
• the favorable resolution of litigation, arbitration, or administrative proceedings, including litigation involving the ACA to which we are not a direct party;
• the relatively small number of states in which we operate health plans, including the greater scale and revenues of our California, Ohio, Texas, and Washington health plans;
• the availability of adequate financing on acceptable terms to fund and capitalize our expansion and growth, repay our outstanding indebtedness at maturity and meet our

liquidity needs, including the interest expense and other costs associated with such financing;
• the failure to comply with the financial or other covenants in our credit agreement or the indentures governing our outstanding notes;
• the sufficiency of funds on hand to pay the amounts due upon conversion or maturity of our outstanding notes;
• the failure of a state in which we operate to renew its federal Medicaid waiver;
• changes generally affecting the managed care industry;
• increases in government surcharges, taxes, and assessments;
• newly emergent viruses or widespread epidemics, public catastrophes or terrorist attacks, and associated public alarm;
• the unexpected loss of the leadership of one or more of our senior executives; and
• increasing competition and consolidation in the Medicaid industry.

Readers should refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018, for a discussion of certain risk factors that
could materially affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations. Given these risks and uncertainties, we can give no assurance that any results or events
projected or contemplated by our forward-looking statements will in fact occur.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements appearing elsewhere in this report, and the audited financial statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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OVERVIEW

Molina Healthcare, Inc., a FORTUNE 500, multi-state healthcare organization, arranges for the delivery of healthcare services to individuals and families who receive their care
through the Medicaid and Medicare programs, and through the state insurance marketplaces (the “Marketplace”). Through our locally operated health plans in 14 states and the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, we served approximately 3.4 million members as of June 30, 2019. The health plans are generally operated by our respective wholly owned
subsidiaries in those states, each of which is licensed as a health maintenance organization (“HMO”).

We currently have two reportable segments: our Health Plans segment and our Other segment. We manage the vast majority of our operations through our Health Plans segment.
The Other segment includes the historical results of the Medicaid management information systems (“MMIS”) and behavioral health subsidiaries we sold in the fourth quarter of
2018, as well as certain corporate amounts not allocated to the Health Plans segment. Prior to the fourth quarter of 2018, the MMIS subsidiary was reported as a stand-alone
segment. Beginning in 2019, we no longer report service revenue or cost of service revenue as a result of the sales of the MMIS and behavioral health subsidiaries noted above.

SECOND QUARTER 2019 HIGHLIGHTS

In summary, we produced pretax earnings of $257 million, and net income of $196 million in the second quarter of 2019, resulting in an after-tax margin of 4.7%. On a year-to-date
basis, pretax earnings were $517 million and net income was $394 million, resulting in an after-tax margin of 4.7%. These results include, on a consolidated and year-to-date basis,
a medical care ratio (“MCR”) of 85.5% and a general and administrative (“G&A”) expense ratio of 7.6%.

Program Performance

Our second quarter and year-to-date results met or exceeded our expectations, and our financial and operational profiles are strong.

In our Medicaid business, we achieved an 88.3% MCR for the first half of the year and performed well, with TANF and ABD generally performing in-line with our expectations.
Medicaid Expansion results were better than we expected, mainly due to rate advocacy efforts. Additionally, medical cost trends in general remained well managed across all
medical cost categories as the result of our continued improvement in utilization management and payment integrity initiatives, and we continued to improve our retention of quality
incentive premium revenues.

Performance in our Medicare business, comprising our Special Needs Plans and Medicaid-Medicare Plan (“MMP”) products, continued to perform well, managing to an MCR of
85.0% for the first half of the year. We are continuing to manage high-acuity members, including long-term services and supports (“LTSS”) benefits embedded in our MMP product,
and risk-adjusted revenue has increased, as our risk scores are more commensurate with the acuity of this population. Our medical margin performance provides us with flexibility
to reinvest margins in additional benefits, which should help us maintain our product competitiveness as we position to grow this business in 2020 and beyond.

Finally, our Marketplace business continues to perform in line with our expectations, and we managed to an MCR of 64.7% for the first half of the year. We continue to generate risk
scores that are more commensurate with the acuity of our membership, and as a result, we are paying less into the risk adjustment transfer pool than we anticipated. The risk pool
has seasoned and our medical cost trend is stable and well-managed, and our monthly membership lapse rate is within our expected level of less than 2%. These results and
metrics were in-line with our expectations, and our medical margin performance also gives us flexibility to make any changes in rates, value-added benefits to the product, and
commissions that we believe may be necessary to grow membership in 2020, while still achieving a sustainable and attractive margin.

Health Plan Performance

We significantly improved the performance of our locally operated health plans in 2018, and they have continued to perform well into 2019. Comments relating to California, Ohio,
Washington and Texas, our largest health plans from a revenue standpoint, follow:

California continues to perform well in its diversified book of business in one of the more complex network environments in the country, and the MCR is performing in the mid to low
80s as a result of effective low-cost networks and effective medical cost management. Our California plan is poised to grow, particularly in returning to meaningful market share in
the Marketplace.
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In Ohio, we are serving 297,000 members, and we are generating strong medical margins. With a total MCR of 87.3% for the second quarter and 88.2% for the first half of the year,
the temporal spike in medical costs due to the introduction of the behavioral health benefit, and the higher acuity mix due to redetermination efforts, has been ameliorated by our
strong rate advocacy in the state.

In Washington, we have a well-diversified portfolio of products and our medical margin performance is returning to a level that is consistent with past periods, even with the
confluence of significant membership growth due to our successful re-procurement, and the introduction of the new integrated behavioral health benefit. The relatively higher
medical cost trends experienced in the first quarter, due to the significant growth, have abated due to increased focus on managing in-patient costs and care management.

In Texas, we await the announcement of awards for the state’s program for the aged, blind or disabled (“ABD”), known in Texas as STAR+PLUS, the program for Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (“TANF”), known in Texas as STAR, and the Children’s Health Insurance Program (“CHIP”), in the third quarter of this year. The continued, strong
performance of our ABD program is built upon our solid skilled nursing facility network and an effective platform for managing personal attendant services.

G&A Expenses

Our G&A expense ratio increased 40 basis points to 7.6% in the first half of 2019, from 7.2% for the same period in 2018, due mainly to the year-over-year decline in overall
revenues.

Balance Sheet and Capital Management

We continue to improve our balance sheet, as we repaid an additional $139 million aggregate principal amount of our 1.125% Convertible Notes in the second quarter, for a total of
$185 million year to date. The impact of capital deployment actions in the quarter resulted in lower interest expense, a gain on repayment of the convertible notes, and a lower share
count. In addition, we have received conversion notices for approximately $9 million principal amount of our 1.125% Convertible Notes that will be settled in the third quarter of
2019.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  2019  2018
 (Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts)

Premium revenue $ 4,049  $ 4,514  $ 8,001  $ 8,837

Premium tax revenue 110  106  248  210

Health insurer fees reimbursed —  104  —  165

Investment income and other revenue 34  32  63  56

        

Medical care costs 3,466  3,850  6,837  7,572

General and administrative expenses 328  335  630  687

Premium tax expenses 110  106  248  210

Health insurer fees —  99  —  174

Restructuring costs 2  8  5  33

        

Operating income 265  342  545  564

Interest expense 22  32  45  65

Other (income) expenses, net (14)  5  (17)  15

Income before income tax expense 257  305  517  484

Income tax expense 61  103  123  175

Net income 196  202  394  309

Net income per diluted share $ 3.06  $ 3.02  $ 6.04  $ 4.68

        

Operating Statistics:        
Ending total membership 3,370,000  4,063,000  3,370,000  4,063,000

MCR (1) 85.6%  85.3%  85.5%  85.7%

G&A ratio (2) 7.8%  6.9%  7.6%  7.2%

Premium tax ratio (1) 2.6%  2.3%  3.0%  2.3%

Effective income tax expense rate 24.0%  33.8%  23.9%  36.2%

After-tax margin (2) 4.7%  4.1%  4.7%  3.2%

________________________

(1) MCR represents medical care costs as a percentage of premium revenue; premium tax ratio represents premium tax expenses as a percentage of premium revenue plus premium tax revenue.
(2) After-tax margin represents net income as a percentage of total revenue. G&A ratio represents general and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenue.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
NET INCOME AND OPERATING INCOME
Net income in the second quarter of 2019 amounted to $196 million, or $3.06 per diluted share, compared with $202 million, or $3.02 per diluted share, in the second quarter of
2018. Current quarter net income was driven by lower operating income, which amounted to $265 million in the second quarter of 2019, compared with $342 million in the second
quarter of 2018, mainly resulting from the year-over-year decline in premium revenue.

Net income in the six months ended June 30, 2019, amounted to $394 million, or $6.04 per diluted share, compared with $309 million, or $4.68 per diluted share, in the six months
ended June 30, 2018. Operating income amounted to $545 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019, compared with $564 million in the six months ended June 30, 2018.

In both the second quarter and six months ended June 30, 2019, earnings per diluted share improved due to the reduction of the dilutive impact of the 1.125% Warrants, as a result
of the termination transactions that settled
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between June 2018 and June 2019. See further discussion in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 9, “Stockholders' Equity.”

PREMIUM REVENUE
Premium revenue decreased $465 million in the second quarter of 2019, when compared with the second quarter of 2018. Member months declined 18%, partially offset by a per-
member per-month (“PMPM”) revenue increase of 8%. Premium revenue decreased $836 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019, when compared with the six months
ended June 30, 2018. Member months declined 18%, partially offset by a PMPM revenue increase of 9%. In both periods, lower premium revenue was primarily in the Medicaid and
Marketplace programs.

The decline in Medicaid premium revenue was driven primarily by the loss in membership due to the previously announced loss of the New Mexico Medicaid contract, along with the
resizing of the Florida Medicaid contract as reported throughout 2018, partially offset by Medicaid premium rate increases.

The decline in Marketplace premium revenue was driven primarily by a relatively smaller benefit from prior year Marketplace risk adjustment in 2019 compared with 2018 due to
declining Marketplace membership, partially offset by Marketplace premium rate increases.

MEDICAL CARE RATIO
The consolidated MCR increased to 85.6% in the second quarter of 2019, from 85.3% in the second quarter of 2018, and decreased to 85.5% in the six months ended June 30,
2019, from 85.7% in the six months ended June 30, 2018.

The increased MCR in the second quarter of 2019 was mainly due to a relatively smaller benefit from prior year Marketplace risk adjustment in 2019 compared with 2018, and the
impact of higher acuity Marketplace membership, partially offset by the impact of Marketplace rate increases and increased premiums tied to risk scores.

The improved MCR in the six months ended June 30, 2019 was mainly due to improvement in the TANF and ABD programs, partially offset by an increased MCR in the Medicaid
Expansion program, primarily in California. In addition, the MCR for the six months ended June 30, 2018, included the benefit of the cost sharing (“CSR”) reimbursement related to
2017 dates of service, described in further detail below.

PREMIUM TAX REVENUE AND EXPENSES

The premium tax ratio (premium tax expense as a percentage of premium revenue plus premium tax revenue) was 2.6% in the second quarter of 2019, compared with 2.3% in the
second quarter of 2018; and 3.0% compared with 2.3% for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The increase is mainly attributed to the state of Michigan’s
implementation of an insurance provider assessment in 2019.

INVESTMENT INCOME AND OTHER REVENUE
Investment income and other revenue increased to $34 million in the second quarter of 2019, compared with $32 million in the second quarter of 2018, and increased to $63 million
in the six months ended June 30, 2019, compared with $56 million in the six months ended June 30, 2018, mainly due to improved annualized portfolio yields in both periods.

G&A EXPENSES
The G&A expense ratio increased to 7.8% in the second quarter of 2019, from 6.9% in the second quarter of 2018, and increased to 7.6% in the six months ended June 30, 2019,
compared with 7.2% in the six months ended June 30, 2018. This increase was primarily due to the impact of lower overall revenues in 2019.

HEALTH INSURER FEES

There are no health insurer fees (“HIF”) expensed or reimbursed in 2019 due to the moratorium under Public Law No. 115-120. In the second quarter of 2018 and the six months
ended June 30, 2018, the HIF amounted to $99 million and $174 million, respectively, and HIF reimbursements amounted to $104 million and $165 million, respectively.
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RESTRUCTURING COSTS
We incurred restructuring costs of $2 million and $5 million in the second quarter of 2019 and the six months ended June 30, 2019, respectively, mainly due to true-ups of lease
terminations recorded in our 2017 Restructuring Plan. In the second quarter of 2018 and the six months ended June 30, 2018, we incurred restructuring costs of $8 million and $33
million, respectively, related to our 2017 Restructuring Plan.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense declined to $22 million in the second quarter of 2019, from $32 million in the second quarter of 2018, and declined to $45 million in the six months ended June 30,
2019, from $65 million in the six months ended June 30, 2018. As further described below in “Liquidity,” we reduced the principal amount outstanding of our 1.125% Convertible
Notes by $185 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019, and reduced total debt by $759 million in the year ended December 31, 2018. The decrease in interest expense in
2019 was partially offset by interest expense attributable to $220 million borrowed under our Term Loan Facility in the six months ended June 30, 2019.

Interest expense includes non-cash interest expense relating primarily to the amortization of the discount on convertible senior notes, which amounted to $1 million and $6 million in
the second quarter of 2019, and 2018, respectively, and $4 million and $13 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The decline in the first half of 2019
is due to repayment of our convertible senior notes throughout 2018 and in the first half of 2019. See further discussion in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7,
“Debt.”

OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSES, NET
In the second quarter of 2019 and the six months ended June 30, 2019, we recognized debt extinguishment gains of $14 million and $17 million, respectively, and in the second
quarter of 2018 and the six months ended June 30, 2018, we recognized debt extinguishment losses of $5 million and $15 million, respectively, in connection with convertible senior
notes repayment transactions. The gain in 2019 was due to a favorable mark to market valuation on the partial termination of the Call Spread Overlay executed in connection with
the related debt extinguishment. See further discussion in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7, “Debt.”

INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes was recorded at an effective rate of 24.0% in the second quarter of 2019, compared with 33.8% in the second quarter of 2018, and 23.9% in the six
months ended June 30, 2019, compared with 36.2% in the six months ended June 30, 2018. The effective tax rate for 2019 differs from 2018 as a result of higher non-deductible
expenses in 2018, primarily related to the non-deductible HIF. The HIF is not applicable in 2019 due to the moratorium under Public Law No. 115-120.

SUMMARY OF NON-RUN RATE ITEMS
The table below summarizes the impact of certain expenses and other items that management believes are not indicative of longer-term business trends and operations. The
individual items presented below increase (decrease) income before income tax expense.

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,
 2019  2018  2019  2018

 Amount  
Per Diluted

Share (1)  Amount  
Per Diluted

Share (1)  Amount  
Per Diluted

Share (1)  Amount  
Per Diluted

Share (1)

 (In millions except per diluted share amounts)

Restructuring costs $ (2)  $ (0.02)  $ (8)  $ (0.10)  $ (5)  $ (0.05)  (33)  (0.39)

Gain (loss) on debt extinguishment 14  0.17  (5)  (0.06)  17  0.21  (15)  (0.21)

 $ 12  $ 0.15  $ (13)  $ (0.16)  $ 12  $ 0.16  $ (48)  $ (0.60)

___________________

(1) Except for permanent differences between GAAP and tax (such as certain expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes), per diluted share amounts are generally calculated at the statutory
income tax rate of 22.6% and 22% for 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

HOW WE ASSESS PERFORMANCE

We derive our revenues primarily from health insurance premiums. Our primary customers are state Medicaid agencies and the federal government.

One of the key metrics used to assess the performance of our Health Plans segment is the MCR, which represents the amount of medical care costs as a percentage of premium
revenue. Therefore, the underlying margin, or the amount earned by the Health Plans segment after medical costs are deducted from premium revenue, is the most important
measure of earnings reviewed by management.

Margin for our Health Plans segment is referred to as “Medical Margin.” Medical Margin amounted to $583 million in the second quarter of 2019, and $664 million in the second
quarter of 2018. Medical Margin amounted to $1,164 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019, and $1,265 million in the six months ended June 30, 2018. Management’s
discussion and analysis of the changes in the individual components of Medical Margin follows.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 11, “Segments,” for more information on our reportable segments.

HEALTH PLANS

The Health Plans segment consists of health plans operating in 14 states and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. As of June 30, 2019, these health plans served approximately 3.4
million members eligible for Medicaid, Medicare, and other government-sponsored healthcare programs for low-income families and individuals, including Marketplace members,
most of whom receive government premium subsidies.

TRENDS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Decline in Membership and Premium Revenue

Medicaid Program

Our Medicaid contracts in New Mexico and in all but two regions in Florida terminated in late 2018 and early 2019. As a result, our Medicaid membership has decreased to
approximately 97,000 members in Florida as of June 30, 2019, from 468,000 members in Florida and New Mexico, in the aggregate, as of December 31, 2018. In 2019, we
continue to serve Medicare and Marketplace members in both Florida and New Mexico, as well as Medicaid members in two regions in Florida.

In addition, our Medicaid membership has declined further in Puerto Rico as a result of the entry of more managed care organizations to that market late last year. We served
approximately 200,000 members in Puerto Rico as of June 30, 2019, compared with 252,000 members as of December 31, 2018.

Primarily as a result of the changes described above, our Medicaid premium revenues have decreased 11% in the six months ended June 30, 2019, when compared with the six
months ended June 30, 2018, and we expect our Medicaid premium revenues to continue to decline in 2019 compared with 2018.

Marketplace Program

We estimate that our 2019 Marketplace end-of-year enrollment will decrease to approximately 270,000 to 280,000 members due to expected attrition. This enrollment is lower than
the 308,000 and 362,000 members enrolled as of June 30, 2019, and December 31, 2018, respectively. Consequently, we expect our Marketplace premium revenues to continue to
decrease in 2019 compared with 2018.

Status of Upcoming Contract Re-Procurements

Medicaid Program

Texas. In late 2018, our Texas health plan submitted two separate request for proposal (“RFP”) responses: one with regard to the STAR+PLUS program; and the other with regard
to the STAR/CHIP programs. Based on the state’s July 9, 2019, addendum to the STAR+PLUS RFP, we currently expect the STAR+PLUS, and STAR/CHIP awards to be
announced in the third quarter of 2019, with an operational effective date of September 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2019, our Texas health plan served 86,000 members under the
existing STAR+PLUS contract, under which we estimate annualized premium revenues of approximately $1,660 million in 2019. As of June 30, 2019, our Texas
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health plan served 116,000 members under the existing STAR/CHIP contracts, under which we estimate annualized premium revenues of approximately $310 million in 2019.

Ohio. We have received information that the state of Ohio expects to release its Medicaid contract RFP early in 2020, with an announcement of the awards likely in the third quarter
of 2020, and an operational effective date of January 1, 2021.

California. We have received information that the state of California expects to release its Medicaid contract RFP in 2020, with new contracts effective in 2023.

A loss of any of our Texas, Ohio, or California Medicaid contracts would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations.

MMP Program

California. In late April 2019, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) approved the California Medicaid agency’s request for a three-year extension of its duals
demonstration program, through December 31, 2022. We estimate annualized premium revenues of approximately $180 million in 2019 under our California MMP program.

Illinois. The current authority for our MMP program in Illinois ends December 31, 2019. In March 2019, the Illinois Medicaid agency submitted a request to CMS for a one-year
extension of its duals demonstration program, through December 31, 2020, with a possible three-year extension through 2022. We estimate annualized premium revenues of
approximately $130 million in 2019 under our Illinois MMP program.

Ohio. In late April 2019, CMS approved the Ohio Medicaid agency’s request for a three-year extension of its duals demonstration program, through December 31, 2022. We
estimate annualized premium revenues of approximately $580 million in 2019 under our Ohio MMP program.

Pressures on Medicaid Funding

Due to states’ budget challenges and political agendas at both the state and federal levels, there are a number of different legislative proposals being considered, some of which
would involve significantly reduced federal or state spending on the Medicaid program, constitute a fundamental change to the federal role in healthcare and, if enacted, could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. These proposals include elements such as the following, as well as numerous
other potential changes and reforms:

• Changes in the entitlement nature of Medicaid (and perhaps Medicare as well) by capping future increases in federal health spending for these programs, and shifting much
more of the risk for health costs in the future to states and consumers;

• Reversing the ACA’s expansion of Medicaid that enables states to cover low-income childless adults;
• Changing Medicaid to a state block grant program, including potentially capping spending on a per-enrollee basis;
• Requiring Medicaid beneficiaries to work; and
• Limiting the amount of lifetime benefits for Medicaid beneficiaries.

ACA

In December 2018, in a case brought by the state of Texas and nineteen other states, a federal judge in Texas held that the ACA’s individual mandate is unconstitutional. He further
held that the individual mandate is inseverable from the entire body of the ACA, and thus the entire ACA is unconstitutional. The District Court stayed its order pending  appeal, and
the decision has now been appealed to and argued before a three judge panel of the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. A decision of that court is expected by October of 2019, after
which the case may be further appealed to the United States Supreme Court. Any final, not-appealable determination that the ACA is unconstitutional would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations.
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MEMBERSHIP

The following tables set forth our Health Plans membership as of the dates indicated:

 
June 30, 

2019  
December 31,

2018  
June 30, 

2018

Ending Membership by Program:      
TANF and CHIP 2,008,000  2,295,000  2,464,000

Medicaid Expansion 595,000  660,000  675,000

ABD 359,000  406,000  415,000

Total Medicaid 2,962,000  3,361,000  3,554,000

MMP – Integrated (1) 57,000  54,000  55,000

Medicare Special Needs Plans (“Medicare”) 43,000  44,000  45,000

Total Medicare 100,000  98,000  100,000

Total Medicaid and Medicare 3,062,000  3,459,000  3,654,000

Marketplace 308,000  362,000  409,000

 3,370,000  3,821,000  4,063,000

      

Ending Membership by Health Plan:      
California 590,000  608,000  639,000

Florida (2) 142,000  313,000  398,000

Illinois 221,000  224,000  219,000

Michigan 360,000  383,000  397,000

New Mexico (2) 26,000  222,000  241,000

Ohio 297,000  302,000  320,000

Puerto Rico 200,000  252,000  326,000

South Carolina 130,000  120,000  114,000

Texas 360,000  423,000  450,000

Washington 811,000  781,000  776,000

Other (3) 233,000  193,000  183,000

 3,370,000  3,821,000  4,063,000

_________________________

(1) MMP members receive both Medicaid and Medicare coverage from Molina Healthcare.
(2) Our Medicaid contracts in New Mexico and in all but two regions in Florida terminated in late 2018 and early 2019. During 2019, we continue to serve Medicare and Marketplace members in both

Florida and New Mexico, as well as Medicaid members in two regions in Florida.
(3) “Other” includes the Idaho, Mississippi, New York, Utah and Wisconsin health plans, which are not individually significant to our consolidated operating results.
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THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019, COMPARED WITH THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BY PROGRAM
The following tables summarize member months, premium revenue, medical care costs, MCR and medical margin by program for the periods indicated (PMPM amounts are in
whole dollars; member months and other dollar amounts are in millions):

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member

Months (1)

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR (2)

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
TANF and CHIP 6.1  $ 1,196  $ 196.36  $ 1,048  $ 172.13  87.7%  $ 148

Medicaid Expansion 1.8  695  384.94  594  328.85  85.4  101

ABD 1.1  1,176  1,088.48  1,061  981.84  90.2  115

Total Medicaid 9.0  3,067  341.72  2,703  301.15  88.1  364

MMP 0.1  406  2,421.89  356  2,118.95  87.5  50

Medicare 0.2  166  1,296.99  132  1,034.43  79.8  34

Total Medicare 0.3  572  1,934.17  488  1,648.73  85.2  84

Total Medicaid and Medicare 9.3  3,639  392.52  3,191  344.14  87.7  448

Marketplace 0.9  410  440.20  275  295.71  67.2  135

 10.2  $ 4,049  $ 396.87  $ 3,466  $ 339.72  85.6%  $ 583

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member

Months (1)

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR (2)

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
TANF and CHIP 7.5  $ 1,393  $ 186.18  $ 1,205  $ 161.13  86.5%  $ 188

Medicaid Expansion 2.1  761  372.04  676  330.83  88.9  85

ABD 1.3  1,288  1,033.34  1,209  969.27  93.8  79

Total Medicaid 10.9  3,442  319.52  3,090  286.89  89.8  352

MMP 0.1  367  2,224.30  313  1,893.91  85.1  54

Medicare 0.2  157  1,168.40  133  989.33  84.7  24

Total Medicare 0.3  524  1,751.49  446  1,488.85  85.0  78

Total Medicaid and Medicare 11.2  3,966  358.23  3,536  319.37  89.2  430

Marketplace 1.2  548  440.93  314  253.04  57.4  234

 12.4  $ 4,514  $ 366.57  $ 3,850  $ 312.68  85.3%  $ 664

Molina Healthcare, Inc. June 30, 2019 Form 10-Q | 38



Table of Contents

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member

Months (1)

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR (2)

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
TANF and CHIP 12.3  $ 2,369  $ 192.83  $ 2,070  $ 168.56  87.4%  $ 299

Medicaid Expansion 3.6  1,359  377.30  1,188  329.65  87.4  171

ABD 2.2  2,343  1,078.40  2,103  967.59  89.7  240

Total Medicaid 18.1  6,071  336.20  5,361  296.85  88.3  710

MMP 0.3  794  2,388.88  689  2,073.30  86.8  105

Medicare 0.3  329  1,290.88  265  1,041.06  80.6  64

Total Medicare 0.6  1,123  1,911.98  954  1,624.97  85.0  169

Total Medicaid and Medicare 18.7  7,194  385.82  6,315  338.67  87.8  879

Marketplace 1.9  807  415.94  522  269.14  64.7  285

 20.6  $ 8,001  $ 388.66  $ 6,837  $ 332.11  85.5%  $ 1,164

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member

Months (1)

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR (2)

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
TANF and CHIP 14.9  $ 2,766  $ 185.66  $ 2,477  $ 166.32  89.6%  $ 289

Medicaid Expansion 4.1  1,513  372.39  1,317  324.19  87.1  196

ABD 2.5  2,542  1,023.83  2,364  951.99  93.0  178

Total Medicaid 21.5  6,821  318.11  6,158  287.22  90.3  663

MMP 0.3  724  2,180.86  618  1,858.87  85.2  106

Medicare 0.3  314  1,178.58  264  992.05  84.2  50

Total Medicare 0.6  1,038  1,735.05  882  1,473.30  84.9  156

Total Medicaid and Medicare 22.1  7,859  356.59  7,040  319.43  89.6  819

Marketplace 2.6  978  373.67  532  203.34  54.4  446

 24.7  $ 8,837  $ 358.40  $ 7,572  $ 307.11  85.7%  $ 1,265

_______________________

(1) A member month is defined as the aggregate of each month’s ending membership for the period presented.
(2) “MCR” represents medical costs as a percentage of premium revenue.

Medicaid Program

The Medical Margin of our Medicaid program increased $12 million, or 3% in the second quarter of 2019 when compared with the second quarter of 2018, and increased $47
million, or 7% in the six months ended June 30, 2019, when compared with the six months ended June 30, 2018. The increase in both periods was due to improvement in the
overall Medicaid MCR, which more than offset the impact of declining Medicaid premium revenue. The Medicaid MCR decreased to 88.1% from 89.8%, or 170 basis points, in the
second quarter of 2019 when compared to the same period in 2018, and decreased to 88.3% from 90.3%, or 200 basis points, in the six months ended June 30, 2019, when
compared with the same period in 2018.

The improved Medicaid MCR for both periods in 2019 mainly resulted from a lower MCR in the ABD program, which was principally driven by lower pharmacy costs from re-
contracted pharmacy benefits management and our continued focus on medical cost management. The improvement in the MCR for the second quarter of 2019 was additionally
driven by a decrease in the Medicaid Expansion MCR, which improved 350 basis points when compared with the second quarter of 2018, mainly due to the impact of rate increases
and retrospective premium increases. The Medicaid Expansion MCR increased slightly in the six months ended June 30, 2019, when compared with the six months ended June 30,
2018, due to lower premium revenue in California and higher inpatient and outpatient fee for service costs in California. The decline in Expansion premium revenue in California
mainly resulted from the rate reduction we received in July 2018.

Medicaid premium revenue decreased $375 million and $750 million in the second quarter of 2019 and the six months ended June 30, 2019, respectively, mainly due to the loss in
membership in connection with the termination of our Medicaid contracts in New Mexico and in all but two regions in Florida in late 2018 and early 2019, partially
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offset by net rate increases in certain other markets. As noted above, we expect lower Medicaid premium revenue throughout 2019, when compared with 2018.

Medicare Program

The Medical Margin of our Medicare program increased $6 million, or 8%, in the second quarter of 2019, when compared with the second quarter of 2018, and increased $13
million, or 8%, in the six months ended June 30, 2019 when compared with the six months ended June 30, 2018. Premiums continue to increase and are higher compared with the
prior year, mainly due to risk scores that are more commensurate with the acuity of our population.

Marketplace Program

The Marketplace Medical Margin decreased $99 million in the second quarter of 2019, when compared with the second quarter of 2018, and decreased $161 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2019, when compared with the six months ended June 30, 2018. The decrease in both periods in 2019 is mostly attributed to a decrease in premium
revenues, driven by a decrease in membership of over 20%, partially offset by premium rate increases and increased premiums tied to risk scores. Additionally, the decrease in
premiums in both periods in 2019 reflects a relatively smaller benefit from prior year Marketplace risk adjustment in 2019 compared with 2018, and the impact of higher acuity
membership. As noted above, we expect Marketplace premium revenue to be lower in 2019, when compared with 2018.

The decrease in Medical Margin for the six months ended June 30, 2019, was partially driven by the impact of $76 million of CSR reimbursement recognized in the six months
ended June 30, 2018. The CSR benefit related to 2017 dates of service and was recognized following the federal government’s confirmation that the reconciliation would be
performed on an annual basis. In the fourth quarter of 2017, we had assumed a nine-month reconciliation of this item pending confirmation of the time period to which the 2017
reconciliation would be applied.

The MCR for the Marketplace program amounted to 67.2% in the second quarter of 2019, compared with 57.4% in the second quarter of 2018, and 64.7% in the six months ended
June 30, 2019, compared with 54.4% in the six months ended June 30, 2018. The increased MCR in both periods in 2019 reflects a relatively smaller benefit from prior year
Marketplace risk adjustment in 2019 compared with 2018, and the impact of higher acuity membership, partially offset by the impact of rate increases and increased premiums tied
to risk scores. Additionally, the increase in MCR for the six months ended June 30, 2019, reflects the impact of the CSR reimbursement recognized in the six months ended June
30, 2018.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BY HEALTH PLAN

The following tables summarize member months, premium revenue, medical care costs, MCR, and medical margin by state health plan for the periods indicated (PMPM amounts
are in whole dollars; member months and other dollar amounts are in millions):

Health Plans Segment Financial Data — Medicaid and Medicare

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 1.6  $ 499  $ 305.40  $ 415  $ 253.85  83.1%  $ 84

Florida 0.3  126  417.10  120  399.22  95.7  6

Illinois 0.6  242  364.15  215  323.96  89.0  27

Michigan 1.1  403  376.39  332  310.08  82.4  71

Ohio 0.9  630  701.22  553  615.59  87.8  77

Puerto Rico 0.6  122  198.95  109  177.56  89.2  13

South Carolina 0.4  140  362.24  125  322.55  89.0  15

Texas 0.7  598  916.74  551  844.02  92.1  47

Washington 2.4  611  257.79  535  225.67  87.5  76

Other (1) (2) 0.7  268  394.85  236  347.43  88.0  32

 9.3  $ 3,639  $ 392.52  $ 3,191  $ 344.14  87.7%  $ 448
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 Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 1.8  $ 517  $ 289.80  $ 441  $ 247.36  85.4%  $ 76

Florida 1.2  377  353.81  362  339.31  95.9  15

Illinois 0.6  203  311.60  170  261.59  84.0  33

Michigan 1.2  388  342.45  331  292.20  85.3  57

New Mexico (2) 0.7  313  469.88  290  435.36  92.7  23

Ohio 1.0  535  571.08  482  514.57  90.1  53

Puerto Rico 0.9  184  188.26  165  168.20  89.3  19

South Carolina 0.4  123  350.22  107  304.20  86.9  16

Texas 0.7  576  835.66  510  740.55  88.6  66

Washington 2.2  571  252.61  526  232.49  92.0  45

Other (1) 0.5  179  322.99  152  274.59  85.0  27

 11.2  $ 3,966  $ 358.23  $ 3,536  $ 319.37  89.2%  $ 430

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 3.3  $ 998  $ 302.59  $ 863  $ 261.66  86.5%  $ 135

Florida 0.7  288  399.86  247  343.24  85.8  41

Illinois 1.3  469  356.16  400  303.50  85.2  69

Michigan 2.2  798  369.66  658  305.00  82.5  140

Ohio 1.8  1,220  680.20  1,090  607.85  89.4  130

Puerto Rico 1.2  224  181.91  199  161.40  88.7  25

South Carolina 0.8  276  362.68  240  315.84  87.1  36

Texas 1.3  1,197  909.59  1,083  822.59  90.4  114

Washington 4.8  1,225  258.10  1,121  236.19  91.5  104

Other (1) (2) 1.3  499  383.07  414  317.56  82.9  85

 18.7  $ 7,194  $ 385.82  $ 6,315  $ 338.67  87.8%  $ 879

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 3.6  $ 1,011  $ 281.14  $ 853  $ 237.26  84.4%  $ 158

Florida 2.2  759  352.68  707  328.26  93.1  52

Illinois 1.1  344  305.94  292  259.87  84.9  52

Michigan 2.3  764  339.56  662  294.19  86.6  102

New Mexico (2) 1.4  632  468.00  600  444.44  95.0  32

Ohio 1.9  1,086  573.87  942  497.75  86.7  144

Puerto Rico 1.9  370  190.68  339  174.74  91.6  31

South Carolina 0.7  245  349.15  211  300.87  86.2  34

Texas 1.4  1,138  822.72  1,029  744.05  90.4  109

Washington 4.5  1,155  254.64  1,100  242.48  95.2  55

Other (1) 1.1  355  318.94  305  273.97  85.9  50

 22.1  $ 7,859  $ 356.59  $ 7,040  $ 319.43  89.6%  $ 819

______________________

(1) “Other” includes the Idaho, Mississippi, New York, Utah and Wisconsin health plans, which are not individually significant to our consolidated operating results.
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(2) In 2019, “Other” includes the New Mexico health plan. The New Mexico health plan’s Medicaid contract terminated on December 31, 2018, and therefore its 2019 results are not individually
significant to our consolidated operating results.

Health Plans Segment Financial Data — Marketplace

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 0.2  $ 61  $ 382.22  $ 35  $ 220.31  57.6%  $ 26

Florida 0.1  50  390.03  30  236.50  60.6  20

Michigan —  10  521.67  6  308.37  59.1  4

Ohio 0.1  24  754.67  19  565.69  75.0  5

Texas 0.3  167  379.29  117  267.12  70.4  50

Washington 0.1  51  803.11  35  548.48  68.3  16

Other (1) 0.1  47  527.41  33  376.04  71.3  14

 0.9  $ 410  $ 440.20  $ 275  $ 295.71  67.2%  $ 135

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 0.2  $ 73  $ 426.16  $ 21  $ 117.92  27.7%  $ 52

Florida 0.1  100  698.31  38  269.86  38.6  62

Michigan —  15  288.67  7  146.97  50.9  8

New Mexico —  31  418.82  18  247.06  59.0  13

Ohio —  31  518.64  23  381.46  73.6  8

Texas 0.7  222  330.12  160  238.72  72.3  62

Washington 0.2  56  787.80  41  572.48  72.7  15

Other (2) —  20  NM  6  NM  NM  14

 1.2  $ 548  $ 440.93  $ 314  $ 253.04  57.4%  $ 234

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 0.3  $ 117  $ 361.73  $ 68  $ 210.71  58.2%  $ 49

Florida 0.3  111  406.52  56  205.17  50.5  55

Michigan —  20  492.23  11  255.98  52.0  9

Ohio 0.1  54  805.96  34  505.10  62.7  20

Texas 0.9  315  341.18  226  245.82  72.0  89

Washington 0.1  98  756.26  64  490.84  64.9  34

Other (1) 0.2  92  501.13  63  344.61  68.8  29

 1.9  $ 807  $ 415.94  $ 522  $ 269.14  64.7%  $ 285
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 Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 0.4  $ 122  $ 334.47  $ 52  $ 141.73  42.4%  $ 70

Florida 0.3  145  468.36  22  73.13  15.6  123

Michigan 0.1  28  254.69  16  145.49  57.1  12

New Mexico 0.1  65  429.19  37  246.77  57.5  28

Ohio 0.1  57  458.48  40  319.53  69.7  17

Texas 1.4  451  318.93  306  216.83  68.0  145

Washington 0.2  95  653.89  71  486.90  74.5  24

Other (2) —  15  NM  (12)  NM  NM  27

 2.6  $ 978  $ 373.67  $ 532  $ 203.34  54.4%  $ 446

_________________________

(1) “Other” includes the New Mexico, Utah and Wisconsin health plans, which are not individually significant to our consolidated operating results in 2019.
(2) “Other” includes the Utah and Wisconsin health plans, where we did not participate in the Marketplace in 2018. Therefore, the ratios for 2018 periods are not meaningful (NM).

Health Plans Segment Financial Data — Total

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 1.8  $ 560  $ 312.21  $ 450  $ 250.87  80.4%  $ 110

Florida 0.4  176  408.99  150  350.47  85.7  26

Illinois 0.6  242  364.15  215  323.96  89.0  27

Michigan 1.1  413  378.86  338  310.05  81.8  75

Ohio 1.0  654  703.09  572  613.85  87.3  82

Puerto Rico 0.6  122  198.95  109  177.56  89.2  13

South Carolina 0.4  140  362.24  125  322.55  89.0  15

Texas 1.0  765  700.15  668  611.53  87.3  97

Washington 2.5  662  271.96  570  234.05  86.1  92

Other (1) (2) 0.8  315  410.27  269  350.76  85.5  46

 10.2  $ 4,049  $ 396.87  $ 3,466  $ 339.72  85.6%  $ 583

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 2.0  $ 590  $ 301.73  $ 462  $ 236.04  78.2%  $ 128

Florida 1.3  477  394.38  400  331.13  84.0  77

Illinois 0.6  203  311.60  170  261.59  84.0  33

Michigan 1.2  403  340.08  338  285.78  84.0  65

New Mexico (2) 0.7  344  464.90  308  416.99  89.7  36

Ohio 1.0  566  567.96  505  506.66  89.2  61

Puerto Rico 0.9  184  188.26  165  168.20  89.3  19

South Carolina 0.4  123  350.22  107  304.20  86.9  16

Texas 1.4  798  585.50  670  492.23  84.1  128

Washington 2.4  627  268.84  567  242.80  90.3  60

Other (1) 0.5  199  360.90  158  285.65  79.1  41

 12.4  $ 4,514  $ 366.57  $ 3,850  $ 312.68  85.3%  $ 664
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 Six Months Ended June 30, 2019

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 3.6  $ 1,115  $ 307.88  $ 931  $ 257.10  83.5%  $ 184

Florida 1.0  399  401.69  303  305.23  76.0  96

Illinois 1.3  469  356.16  400  303.50  85.2  69

Michigan 2.2  818  371.91  669  304.10  81.8  149

Ohio 1.9  1,274  684.77  1,124  604.12  88.2  150

Puerto Rico 1.2  224  181.91  199  161.40  88.7  25

South Carolina 0.8  276  362.68  240  315.84  87.1  36

Texas 2.2  1,512  675.34  1,309  584.90  86.6  203

Washington 4.9  1,323  271.34  1,185  242.96  89.5  138

Other (1) (2) 1.5  591  397.61  477  320.90  80.7  114

 20.6  $ 8,001  $ 388.66  $ 6,837  $ 332.11  85.5%  $ 1,164

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2018

 
Member
Months

 Premium Revenue  Medical Care Costs  

MCR

 

Medical Margin  Total  PMPM  Total  PMPM   
California 4.0  $ 1,133  $ 286.07  $ 905  $ 228.44  79.9%  $ 228

Florida 2.5  904  367.18  729  296.29  80.7  175

Illinois 1.1  344  305.94  292  259.87  84.9  52

Michigan 2.4  792  335.59  678  287.23  85.6  114

New Mexico (2) 1.5  697  464.11  637  424.58  91.5  60

Ohio 2.0  1,143  566.77  982  486.79  85.9  161

Puerto Rico 1.9  370  190.68  339  174.74  91.6  31

South Carolina 0.7  245  349.15  211  300.87  86.2  34

Texas 2.8  1,589  567.95  1,335  477.43  84.1  254

Washington 4.7  1,250  267.01  1,171  250.05  93.6  79

Other (1) 1.1  370  333.35  293  263.24  79.0  77

 24.7  $ 8,837  $ 358.40  $ 7,572  $ 307.11  85.7%  $ 1,265

__________________

(1) “Other” includes the Idaho, Mississippi, New York, Utah and Wisconsin health plans, which are not individually significant to our consolidated operating results.
(2) In 2019, “Other” includes the New Mexico health plan. The New Mexico health plan’s Medicaid contract terminated on December 31, 2018, and therefore its 2019 results are not individually

significant to our consolidated operating results.

OTHER

The Other segment includes the historical results of the Medicaid management information systems (“MMIS”) and behavioral health subsidiaries we sold in the fourth quarter of
2018, as well as certain corporate amounts not allocated to the Health Plans segment. Prior to the fourth quarter of 2018, the MMIS subsidiary was reported as a stand-alone
segment. Beginning in 2019, we no longer report service revenue or cost of service revenue as a result of the sales of the MMIS and behavioral health subsidiaries noted above.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Other segment margin in the second quarter and six months ended June 30, 2018, was insignificant.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

LIQUIDITY

We manage our cash, investments, and capital structure to meet the short- and long-term obligations of our business while maintaining liquidity and financial flexibility. We forecast,
analyze, and monitor our cash flows to enable prudent investment management and financing within the confines of our financial strategy.

We maintain liquidity at two levels: 1) the regulated health plan subsidiaries; and 2) the parent company. Our regulated health plan subsidiaries generate significant cash flows from
premium revenue, which is generally received a short time before related healthcare services are paid. Such cash flows are our primary source of liquidity. Thus, any future decline
in our profitability may have a negative impact on our liquidity. A majority of the assets held by our regulated health plan subsidiaries is in the form of cash, cash equivalents, and
investments.

When available and as permitted by applicable regulations, cash in excess of the capital needs of our regulated health plan subsidiaries is generally paid in the form of dividends to
our parent company to be used for general corporate purposes. In the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, the parent received $345 million and $634 million, respectively, in
dividends from the regulated health plan subsidiaries.

To satisfy minimum statutory net worth requirements, the parent company may contribute capital to the regulated health plan subsidiaries. In the three and six months ended June
30, 2019, the parent contributed capital of $6 million to the regulated health plan subsidiaries.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments at the parent company amounted to $467 million and $170 million as of June 30, 2019, and December 31, 2018, respectively. The increase
in 2019 was mainly due to cash dividends received from our regulated health plan subsidiaries, and proceeds from borrowings under the Term Loan Facility, partially offset by
principal repayments of our outstanding 1.125% Convertible Notes, as described further below in “Cash Flow Activities.”

Investments

After considering expected cash flows from operating activities, we generally invest cash of regulated subsidiaries that exceeds our expected short-term obligations in longer term,
investment-grade, and marketable debt securities to improve our overall investment return. These investments are made pursuant to board approved investment policies which
conform to applicable state laws and regulations.

Our investment policies are designed to provide liquidity, preserve capital, and maximize total return on invested assets, all in a manner consistent with state requirements that
prescribe the types of instruments in which our subsidiaries may invest. These investment policies require that our investments have final maturities of less than 10 years, or less
than 10 years average life for structured securities. Professional portfolio managers operating under documented guidelines manage our investments and a portion of our cash
equivalents. Our portfolio managers must obtain our prior approval before selling investments where the loss position of those investments exceeds certain levels.

Our restricted investments are invested principally in certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury securities; we have the ability to hold such restricted investments until maturity. All of
our unrestricted investments are classified as current assets.

Cash Flow Activities

Our cash flows are summarized as follows:

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2019  2018  Change

 (In millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 156  $ 314  $ (158)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (393)  398  (791)

Net cash used in financing activities (362)  (503)  141

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash and cash equivalents $ (599)  $ 209  $ (808)
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Operating Activities

We typically receive capitation payments monthly, in advance of payments for medical claims; however, government payors may adjust their payment schedules, positively or
negatively impacting our reported cash flows from operating activities in any given period. For example, government payors may delay our premium payments, or they may prepay
the following month’s premium payment.

Net cash provided by operations for the six months ended June 30, 2019 was $156 million, compared with $314 million in the six months ended June 30, 2018. The $158 million
decrease in cash flow was due to settlements with government agencies, mainly related to the final 2017 CSR settlement paid in 2019, timing of CMS Medicare premium receipts in
2018, and the use of cash associated with declines in Medicaid and Marketplace membership. These items were partially offset by a net benefit from timing differences in other
current assets and liabilities.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $393 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019, compared with $398 million provided by investing activities in the six months ended
June 30, 2018, a decrease in cash flow of $791 million. The year over year decline was primarily due to lower proceeds from sales and maturities of investments, net of purchases,
in the six months ended June 30, 2019, largely driven by cash flow needs associated with our financing activities, as described below.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $362 million in the six months ended June 30, 2019, compared with $503 million in the six months ended June 30, 2018, an increase in
cash flow of $141 million, due to less cash used in 2019 compared with 2018. In the six months ended June 30, 2019, net cash paid for the aggregate 1.125% Convertible Notes-
related transactions amounted to $609 million, partially offset by proceeds of $220 million borrowed under the Term Loan Facility. In the six months ended June 30, 2018, net cash
used in financing activities included net cash paid for the aggregate 1.125% Convertible Notes-related transactions of $202 million, and the $300 million repayment of the Credit
Facility.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

We believe that our cash resources, our borrowing capacity available under our Credit Agreement as discussed further below in “Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity—Future
Sources,” and internally generated funds will be sufficient to support our operations, regulatory requirements, debt repayment obligations and capital expenditures for at least the
next 12 months.

On a consolidated basis, at June 30, 2019, our working capital was $2,475 million, compared with $2,216 million at December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2019, our cash and
investments amounted to $4,423 million, compared with $4,629 million at December 31, 2018.

Regulatory Capital and Dividend Restrictions

Each of our HMO subsidiaries must maintain a minimum amount of statutory capital determined by statute or regulations. Such statutes, regulations and capital requirements also
restrict the timing, payment and amount of dividends and other distributions, loans or advances that may be paid to us as the sole stockholder. To the extent our HMO subsidiaries
must comply with these regulations, they may not have the financial flexibility to transfer funds to us. Based upon current statutes and regulations, the minimum capital and surplus
(net assets) requirement, for these subsidiaries was approximately $1,050 million at June 30, 2019, and $1,040 million at December 31, 2018. Our HMO subsidiaries were in
compliance with these minimum capital requirements as of both dates.

Under applicable regulatory requirements, the amount of dividends that may be paid through the remainder of 2019 by our HMO subsidiaries without prior approval by regulatory
authorities as of June 30, 2019, is approximately $127 million in the aggregate. Our HMO subsidiaries can pay dividends over this amount, but only after approval is granted by the
regulatory authorities.

Debt Ratings

Our 5.375% Notes and 4.875% Notes are rated “BB-” by Standard & Poor’s, and “B2” by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. A downgrade in our ratings could adversely affect our
borrowing capacity and increase our borrowing costs.
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Financial Covenants

Our Credit Agreement contains customary non-financial and financial covenants, including a net leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio. Such ratios, presented below, are
computed as defined by the terms of the Credit Agreement.

Credit Facility Financial Covenants Required Per Agreement  As of June 30, 2019
    

Net leverage ratio <4.0x  1.0x

Interest coverage ratio >3.5x  14.7x

In addition, the indentures governing the 4.875% Notes, the 5.375% Notes and the 1.125% Convertible Notes contain cross-default provisions that are triggered upon default by us
or any of our subsidiaries on any indebtedness in excess of the amount specified in the applicable indenture. As of June 30, 2019, we were in compliance with all covenants under
the Credit Agreement and the indentures governing our outstanding notes.

Capital Plan Progress

In the first quarter of 2019, we repaid $46 million aggregate principal amount of our 1.125% Convertible Notes and entered into privately negotiated termination agreements to
terminate the respective portion of the related 1.125% Call Option and 1.125% Warrants.

In the second quarter of 2019, we repaid an additional $139 million aggregate principal amount of our 1.125% Convertible Notes and entered into privately negotiated termination
agreements to terminate the respective portion of the related 1.125% Call Option and 1.125% Warrants. Following these transactions, the remaining principal amount outstanding of
our 1.125% Convertible Notes is $67 million.

FUTURE SOURCES AND USES OF LIQUIDITY
Future Sources

Our Health Plans segment regulated subsidiaries generate significant cash flows from premium revenue, which we generally receive a short time before we pay for the related
healthcare services. Such cash flows are our primary source of liquidity. Thus, any future decline in our profitability may have a negative impact on our liquidity.

Dividends from Subsidiaries. When available and as permitted by applicable regulations, cash in excess of the capital needs of our regulated health plans is generally paid in the
form of dividends to our unregulated parent company to be used for general corporate purposes.

Credit Agreement Borrowing Capacity. As of June 30, 2019, we had available borrowing capacity of $380 million under the Term Loan Facility, following our draw down of $220
million in the first half of 2019. Under the Term Loan Facility, we may request up to ten advances, each in a minimum principal amount of $50 million, until July 31, 2020. In addition,
we have available borrowing capacity of $498 million under our Credit Facility. See further discussion in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7, “Debt.”

Savings from the IT Restructuring Plan. Management is focused on a margin recovery plan that includes identification and implementation of various profit improvement initiatives.
To that end, we began a plan to restructure our information technology department (the “IT Restructuring Plan”) in 2018. In early 2019, we entered into services agreements with our
outsourcing vendor under which they manage certain of our information technology services. We expect the IT Restructuring Plan to be completed by the end of 2019. We currently
estimate that this plan will reduce annualized run-rate expenses by approximately $15 million to $20 million in the first full year, increasing to approximately $30 million to $35 million
by the end of the fifth full year. Such savings, if achieved, would reduce Other segment general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statements of income. Further
details are described in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 10, “Restructuring Costs.”

Future Uses

Regulatory Capital Requirements and Dividend Restrictions. We have the ability, and have committed to provide, additional capital to each of our health plans as necessary to
ensure compliance with statutory capital and surplus requirements.
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1.125% Convertible Notes. The fair value of the 1.125% Convertible Notes was $231 million as of June 30, 2019, which amount reflects both the principal amount outstanding and
the estimated fair value of the 1.125% Conversion Option. The 1.125% Convertible Notes mature on January 15, 2020. As conversion requests are received, the settlement of the
notes must be paid in cash pursuant to the terms of the applicable indenture. We have received conversion notices for approximately $9 million principal amount that will be settled
in the third quarter of 2019.

We have sufficient available cash, combined with borrowing capacity available under our Credit Agreement, to fund conversions as they occur, and to repay the outstanding
principal amount of the 1.125% Convertible Notes at maturity. Refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7, “Debt,” for a detailed discussion of the 1.125%
Convertible Notes, including recent transactions.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
A summary of future obligations under our various contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2018, was disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2018.

Other than the financing transactions described in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7, “Debt,” there were no significant changes to this previously filed
information outside the ordinary course of business during the six months ended June 30, 2019. See also Note 13, “Leases”, for a summary of the maturities of our lease liabilities
as of June 30, 2019.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

When we prepare our consolidated financial statements, we use estimates and assumptions that may affect reported amounts and disclosures; actual results could differ from these
estimates. Our critical accounting estimates relate to:

• Medical claims and benefits payable. Refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 6, “Medical Claims and Benefits Payable,” for a table that presents the
components of the change in medical claims and benefits payable, and for additional information regarding the factors used to determine our changes in estimates for all
periods presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Other than the discussion as noted above, there have been no significant changes during the six
months ended June 30, 2019, to our disclosure reported in “Critical Accounting Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018.

• Contractual provisions that may adjust or limit revenue or profit. For a discussion of this topic, including amounts recorded in our consolidated financial statements, refer to
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies.”

• Quality incentives. For a discussion of this topic, including amounts recorded in our consolidated financial statements, refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies.”

• Goodwill and intangible assets, net. There have been no significant changes, during the six months ended June 30, 2019, to our disclosure reported in “Critical Accounting
Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our earnings and financial position are exposed to financial market risk relating to changes in interest rates, and the resulting impact on investment income and interest expense.

Substantially all of our investments and restricted investments are subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market interest rates increase. Assuming a hypothetical
and immediate 1% increase in market interest rates at June 30, 2019, the fair value of our fixed income investments would decrease by approximately $37 million. Declines in
interest rates over time will reduce our investment income.

For further information on fair value measurements and our investment portfolio, please refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 4, “Fair Value Measurements,”
and Note 5, “Investments.”
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Borrowings under our Credit Agreement bear interest based, at our election, on a base rate or other defined rate, plus in each case the applicable margin. As of June 30, 2019,
$220 million was outstanding under the Term Loan Facility. For further information, see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7, “Debt.”

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, has concluded, based upon
its evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report, that the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2019 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings, see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 12, “Commitments and Contingencies.”

RISK FACTORS

Certain risks may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations, or stock price, and you should carefully consider them before
making an investment decision with respect to our securities. In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the risk factors discussed in
“Risk Factors,” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018. The risk factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2018, are not the only risks that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially
adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations, or stock price.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Purchases of common stock made by us, or on our behalf during the quarter ended June 30, 2019, including shares withheld by us to satisfy our employees’ income tax obligations,
are set forth below:

 

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased (1)  
Average Price 
Paid per Share  

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of

Publicly 
Announced 

Plans or
Programs  

Approximate 
Dollar Value

of Shares Authorized
to Be Purchased

Under the Plans or
Programs

April 1 - April 30 136  $ 142.69  —  $ —

May 1 - May 31 2,195  $ 130.81  —  $ —

June 1 - June 30 408  $ 152.56  —  $ —

Total 2,739  $ 134.64  —   

_______________________

(1) During the three months ended June 30, 2019, we withheld 2,739 shares of common stock under our 2011 Equity Incentive Plan to settle employee income tax obligations.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

Exhibit No.  Title  Method of Filing

10.1
 

2019 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement
(Employee/Officer with No Employment Agreement)  

Filed herewith.

10.2
 

2019 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement (Employee/Officer with No
Employment Agreement)  

Filed herewith.

10.3
 

2019 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement
(Officer with Employment Agreement)  

Filed herewith.

10.4
 

2019 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement (Officer with Employment
Agreement)  

Filed herewith.

31.1  Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer  Filed herewith.

31.2  Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer  Filed herewith.

32.1
 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

Filed herewith.

32.2
 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

Filed herewith.

101.INS  XBRL Taxonomy Instance Document.  Filed herewith.

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.  Filed herewith.

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.  Filed herewith.

101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.  Filed herewith.

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.  Filed herewith.

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

   MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

   (Registrant)

   

Dated: July 31, 2019  /s/ JOSEPH M. ZUBRETSKY

   Joseph M. Zubretsky
   Chief Executive Officer
   (Principal Executive Officer)
   

Dated: July 31, 2019  /s/ THOMAS L. TRAN

   Thomas L. Tran
   Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
   (Principal Financial Officer)
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Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement This RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) effective as of [DATE] is between Molina Healthcare, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and [EMPLOYEE NAME], an employee of the Company or one of its Affiliates (the “Grantee”), pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions of the Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Company desires to award to the Grantee a number of shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), subject to certain restrictions as provided in this Agreement, in order to carry out the purpose of the Plan. The purpose of this Agreement is to evidence the terms and conditions of an award of restricted stock granted to the Grantee under the Plan. Accordingly, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Grantee hereby agree as follows: Section 1. Award of Restricted Stock. Effective as of [DATE] (the “Effective Date”), the Company grants to the Grantee a restricted stock award of [NUMBER OF SHARES] shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”), subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in accordance with the terms of the Plan (the “Restricted Stock Award”). Section 2. Rights with Respect to the Shares. (a) Stockholder Rights. With respect to the Shares, the Grantee shall be entitled at all times on and after the date of issuance of the Shares to exercise the rights of a stockholder of Common Stock of the Company, including the right to vote the Shares and the right to receive dividends on the Shares as provided in Section 2(b) hereof, unless and until the Shares are forfeited pursuant to Section 3 hereof. However, the Shares shall be nontransferable and subject to a risk of forfeiture to the Company at all times prior to the dates on
which such Shares become vested, and the restrictions with respect to the Shares lapse, in accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. (b) Dividends. As a condition to receiving the Shares under the Plan, the Grantee hereby agrees to defer the receipt of dividends paid on the Shares. Cash dividends or other cash distributions paid with respect to the Shares prior to the date or dates the Shares vest shall be subject to the same restrictions, terms, and conditions as the Shares to which they relate, shall be promptly deposited with the Secretary of the Company or a custodian designated by the Secretary, and shall be forfeited in the event that the Shares with respect to which the dividends were paid are forfeited. (c) Issuance of Shares. The Company shall cause the Shares to be issued in the Grantee’s name or in a nominee name on the Grantee’s behalf, either by book-entry registration or issuance of a stock certificate or certificates evidencing the Shares, which certificate or certificates shall be held by the Secretary of the Company or the stock transfer agent or brokerage service selected by the Secretary of the Company to provide such services for the Plan. The Shares shall be restricted from transfer and shall be subject to an appropriate stop-transfer order. If any certificate is issued, the certificate shall bear an appropriate legend referring to the restrictions applicable to the Shares. The Grantee hereby agrees to the retention by the Company of the Shares and, if a stock certificate is issued, the Grantee agrees to execute and deliver to the Company a blank stock power with respect to the Shares as a condition to the receipt of this Restricted Stock Award. After any Shares vest pursuant to Section 3 hereof, and following payment of the applicable withholding taxes pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement, the Company shall promptly cause to be issued a certificate or certificates, registered in the Grantee’s name, evidencing such vested whole Shares (less any Shares

withheld to pay withholding taxes) and shall cause such certificate or certificates to be delivered to the Grantee free of the legend and the stop-transfer order referenced above. The Company will not deliver any fractional Share but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Value of such fractional Share at the time certificates evidencing the Shares are delivered to the Grantee. {00416523;1}



 

Section 3. Vesting; Forfeiture. (a) Vesting. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, [one-fourth (1/4th)] [one-third (1/3rd)] of the Shares shall vest, and the restrictions with respect to the Shares shall lapse, on each of the first, second, [and] third/[, and fourth] anniversaries of the Effective Date if the Grantee remains continuously employed by the Company or an Affiliate of the Company until such respective vesting dates. (b) Forfeiture. If the Grantee ceases to be employed by the Company and all Affiliates of the Company for any reason prior to the vesting of the Shares, Grantee’s rights to all of the unvested Shares shall be immediately and irrevocably forfeited, including the right to vote such Shares and the right to receive dividends on such Shares. (c) No Early Vesting. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, or otherwise provided in an agreement with, or plan of the Company applicable to the Grantee, in no event will any of the Shares vest prior to their respective vesting dates set forth in Section 3(a) hereof. Section 4. Restrictions on Transfer. Until the Shares vest pursuant to Section 3 hereof, neither the Shares, nor any right with respect to the Shares under this Agreement, may be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated (by operation of law or otherwise) or otherwise conveyed or encumbered and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process. Any attempted sale, assignment, transfer, pledge, hypothecation or other conveyance or encumbrance shall be void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate of the Company. Section 5. Distributions and Adjustments. (a) If any Shares vest subsequent to any change in the number or character of the Common Stock of the Company through any stock dividend or other distribution, recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchange of shares
or other securities of the Company, issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase shares of Common Stock or other securities of the Company or other similar corporate transaction or event such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee to be appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under this Agreement, then the Committee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable, in its sole discretion, adjust any or all of the number and type of such Shares. (b) Any additional shares of Common Stock of the Company, any other securities of the Company and any other property distributed with respect to the Shares prior to the date or dates the Shares vest shall be subject to the same restrictions, terms and conditions as the Shares to which they relate and shall be promptly deposited with the Secretary of the Company or a custodian designated by the Secretary. Section 6. Taxes. (a) The Grantee acknowledges that the Grantee will consult with the Grantee’s personal tax adviser regarding the income tax consequences of the grant of the Shares, payment of dividends on the Shares, the vesting of the Shares and any other matters related to this Agreement. In order to comply with all applicable federal, state, local or foreign income tax laws or regulations, the Company may take such action as it deems appropriate to ensure that all applicable federal, state, local or foreign payroll, withholding, income or other taxes, which are the Grantee’s sole and absolute responsibility, are withheld or collected from the Grantee. {00416523;1} 2



 

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and such rules as may be adopted by the Committee administering the Plan, the Grantee may elect to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising from the receipt of, or the lapse of restrictions relating to, the Shares by (i) delivering cash, check, bank draft, money order or wire transfer payable to the order of the Company, (ii) having the Company withhold a portion of the Shares otherwise to be delivered having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes, or (iii) delivering to the Company shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes. The Company will not deliver any fractional Share but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Value of such fractional Share. The Grantee’s election must be made on or before the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is determined. If the Grantee does not make an election, the Company will withhold a portion of the Shares otherwise to be delivered having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes. Section 7. Non-Solicitation. (a) Non-Solicitation (Employees). The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that during the period of Grantee’s employment by the Company (or any Subsidiary), and for a period of one (1) year after termination of Grantee’s Service Relationship for any reason, with or without Cause, Grantee shall not directly or indirectly, either alone or in concert with others, solicit, entice, or encourage the hiring of any employee of the Company (or any Subsidiary) unless such person was involuntarily terminated or laid off by the Company (or any Subsidiary). (b) Non-Solicitation (Customers). During the Grantee’s employment with the Company and for a period of one (1) year after the Grantee’s date of termination, the Grantee shall not, directly or indirectly: (i) contact or solicit, or direct any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity to contact or solicit, any of the Company’s customers for the
purpose of providing any products and/or services that are the same as or similar to the products and services provided by the Company to its customers during the term of the Company’s employment; or (ii) divert or attempt to divert, for his direct or indirect benefit, or for the benefit of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, the business of any customer of the Company; or (iii) influence or attempt to influence any customer of the Company to transfer its business to the Grantee or any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity; or (iv) in any other manner knowingly interfere with, disrupt or attempt to disrupt the relationship of the Company with any of its customers. In addition, the Company will not disclose the identity of any such customers to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other entity for any reason or purpose whatsoever. [SECTION 8 FOR NON-CALIFORNIA EMPLOYEES] [Section 8. Non-Competition. During the Grantee’s employment with the Company and for a period of one (1) year after the Grantee’s date of termination, the Grantee shall not, recognizing the national scope of the Company’s business, directly or indirectly, engage, or participate in or in any way render services or assistance to (including, without limitation, as an officer, director, employee, consultant, agent, lender or equityholder) any business that competes, directly or indirectly, with any product or service of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates within the United States of America.] Section 9. Nondisparagement. The Grantee agrees that he/she will not disparage the Company or its directors, officers, employees, affiliates, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors or assigns in any written or oral communications to any third party. The Grantee further agrees that he/she will not direct anyone to make any disparaging oral or written remarks to any third parties. {00416523;1} 3



 

Section 10. Confidentiality. The Grantee agrees to keep and maintain in strict confidence all confidential and proprietary information of the Company (or any Subsidiary) during and after the term of employment by the Company, and to never directly or indirectly make known, divulge, reveal, furnish, make available, or use any confidential information (except in the course of regular authorized duties on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary). Grantee’s obligations of confidentiality hereunder shall survive termination of employment regardless of any actual or alleged breach by the Company (or any Subsidiary) in connection with such termination, until and unless any such confidential information shall have become, through no fault of Grantee, generally known to the public or unless Grantee is required by law to make disclosure (after giving the Company or any Subsidiary notice and an opportunity to contest such requirement). Grantee’s obligations under this Section are in addition to and not in limitation or preemption of all other obligations of confidentiality which Grantee has to the Company under general legal or equitable principles. All documents and other property including or reflecting confidential information furnished to Grantee by the Company or otherwise acquired or developed by the Company shall at all times be the property of the Company (or any Subsidiary). Upon termination of employment, Grantee shall return to the Company (or any Subsidiary) any such documents or other property (including copies, summaries, or analyses of the foregoing) of the Company (or any Subsidiary) which are in Grantee’s possession, custody, or control. Section 11. Definitions. Terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them in the Plan. Section 12. Governing Law. The internal law, and not the law of conflicts, of the State of [California]/[Delaware] will govern all questions concerning the validity, construction and effect
of this Agreement. Section 13. Plan Provisions. This Agreement is made under and subject to the provisions of the Plan, and all of the provisions of the Plan are also provisions of this Agreement. If there is a difference or conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern. By accepting this Restricted Stock Award, the Grantee confirms that the Grantee has received a copy of the Plan, represents that the Grantee is familiar with the terms and provisions of the Plan, and hereby accepts this Restricted Stock Award subject to all the terms and provisions of the Plan. Section 14. No Rights to Continue Service or Employment. Nothing herein shall be construed as giving the Grantee the right to continue in the employ or to provide services to the Company or any Affiliate, whether as an employee or as a consultant or otherwise, or interfere with or restrict in any way the right of the Company or any Affiliate to discharge the Grantee, whether as an employee or consultant or otherwise, at any time, with or without cause. In addition, the Company or any Affiliate may discharge the Grantee free from any liability or claim under this Agreement. Section 15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement together with the Plan supersede any and all other prior understandings and agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and constitute the sole and only agreements between the parties with respect to said subject matter. All prior negotiations and agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof are merged into this Agreement. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any party or by anyone acting on behalf {00416523;1} 4



 

of any party, which are not embodied in this Agreement or the Plan and that any agreement, statement or promise that is not contained in this Agreement or the Plan shall not be valid or binding or of any force or effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Grantee is subject to a written employment, change in control, severance or similar agreement with the Company or plan with respect thereto, and the Grantee would be entitled under the express provisions of such agreement or plan to accelerated vesting of the Restricted Stock Award in connection with the termination of the Grantee’s employment in the circumstances set forth in that agreement, the provisions of such agreement shall control with respect to such vesting rights, and the corresponding provisions of this Agreement shall not apply. Section 16. Modification. No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon the parties unless the change or modification is in writing and signed by the parties. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Plan, this Agreement and the Restricted Stock Award may be amended, altered, suspended, discontinued or terminated to the extent permitted by the Plan. Section 17. Shares Subject to Agreement. The Shares shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in Section 5, no adjustment shall be made for dividends or other rights for which the record date is prior to the issuance of the Shares. The Company shall not be required to deliver any Shares until the requirements of any federal or state securities or other laws, rules or regulations (including the rules of any securities exchange) as may be determined by the Committee to be applicable are satisfied. Section 18. Severability. In the event that any provision that is contained in the Plan or this Agreement is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction or would disqualify the Plan or this Agreement for any
reason and under any law as deemed applicable by the Committee, the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the purpose or intent of the Plan or this Agreement, such provision shall be stricken as to such jurisdiction or Shares, and the remainder of the Plan or this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Section 19. Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsections of this Agreement solely as a convenience to facilitate reference. Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or interpretation of this Agreement or any provision hereof. Section 20. Grantee’s Acknowledgments. The Grantee hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Committee or the Board of Directors of the Company, as appropriate, upon any questions arising under the Plan or this Agreement. Any determination in this connection by the Company, including the Board of Directors of the Company or the Committee, shall be final, binding and conclusive. The obligations of the Company and the rights of the Grantee are subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Section 21. Parties Bound. The terms, provisions and agreements that are contained in this Agreement shall apply to, be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives and permitted successors and assigns, subject to the limitation on assignment {00416523;1} 5



 

expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall have no force or effect unless it is duly executed and delivered by the Company. Section 22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but both of which when taken together shall constitute a single contract. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement by telecopy shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has executed this Agreement, in the case of the Company by its duly authorized officer, effective as of the day and year first above written. MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. By: [NAME] Its: [TITLE] PARTICIPANT, [NAME] {00416523;1} 6



 



MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. 2019 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT THIS PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated [DATE], by and between MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”), and [NAME] (the “Participant”), evidences the award of Performance Units (the “Award”) granted by the Corporation to the Participant as to the number of Performance Units first set forth below. Total Number of Performance Units:1 [NUMBER OF UNITS] Award Date: [GRANT DATE] Performance Period for the Award: [PERFORMANCE PERIOD] Vesting1, 2 The Award shall vest and become nonforfeitable as provided in Section 2 of the attached Terms and Conditions of Performance Unit Award (the “Terms”). The Award is granted under the MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. 2019 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN (the “Plan”), by and between the Corporation and the Participant, and is subject to the Terms attached to this Agreement (incorporated herein by this reference) and to the Plan. The Award has been granted to the Participant in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other form of compensation otherwise payable or to be paid to the Participant. Capitalized terms are defined in the Plan if not defined herein. The parties agree to the terms of the Award set forth herein. The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Terms, the Plan, and the Prospectus for the Plan. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the Corporation may deliver, by electronic mail, the use of the Internet, including through the website of the agent appointed by the Committee to administer the Plan, the Corporation intranet web pages or otherwise, any information concerning the Corporation, this Award, the Plan, and any information required by the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
PARTICIPANT MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. a Delaware corporation By: [NAME] [NAME]/[TITLE] 1 Subject to adjustment under Section 4.2 of the Plan. 2 Subject to early termination under Section 10.7 of the Plan.



 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PERFORMANCE UNIT AWARD 1. Performance Units. Each Performance Unit constitutes an unfunded and unsecured promise of the Corporation to deliver up to two shares of the Corporation’s common stock to the Participant (subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.2 of the Plan) pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, subject to the vesting provisions in Exhibit A. The Performance Units shall be used solely as a device for the determination of the payment to eventually be made to the Participant if such Performance Units vest pursuant to Section 2. The Performance Units shall not be treated as property or as a trust fund of any kind. 2. Vesting. Subject to Section 7, the Award shall vest and become nonforfeitable at the vesting percentage levels set forth in Exhibit A, based on the achievement of the Performance Goals established by the Committee and set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto for the Performance Period. In the event that the performance condition with respect to the Award is achieved, the Award shall become unconditionally due. Subject to Section 7, any Performance Units subject to the Award that do not vest in accordance with Exhibit A shall terminate as of the last day of the Performance Period. 3. Continuance of Service. Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 7 below, the vesting schedule requires continued Service through each applicable vesting date as a condition to the vesting of the Award and the rights and benefits under this Agreement; and Service for only a portion of any vesting period, even if a substantial portion, will not entitle the Participant to any proportionate vesting or avoid or mitigate a termination of rights and benefits upon or following a termination of Participant’s Service as provided in Section 7 below or under the Plan for such vesting period (or for any later vesting period). Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Plan constitutes an employment or
service commitment by the Corporation, affects the contractual obligations pursuant to any employment or service commitment agreement if Participant is party to such agreement, or in the absence of such agreement affects Participant’s status as an employee at will who is subject to termination without cause, confers upon the Participant any right to remain employed by or in service to the Corporation or any Subsidiary Corporation, interferes in any way with the right of the Corporation or any Subsidiary Corporation at any time to terminate Participant’s Service, or affects the right of the Corporation or any Subsidiary Corporation to increase or decrease the Participant’s other compensation or benefits. Nothing in this paragraph, however, is intended to adversely affect any independent contractual right of the Participant without his consent thereto. 4. Limitations on Rights Associated with Performance Units. The Participant shall have no rights as a stockholder of the Corporation, no dividend rights and no voting rights with respect to the Performance Units and any shares of Common Stock underlying or issuable in respect of such Performance Units until such shares of Common Stock are actually issued to and held of record by the Participant. No adjustments will be made for dividends or other rights of a holder for which the record date is prior to the date of issuance of the stock certificate. 5. Restrictions on Transfer. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, neither the Award, nor any interest therein may be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of, alienated or encumbered, either voluntarily or involuntarily. The transfer restrictions in the preceding sentence shall not apply to (a) transfers to the Corporation, or (b) transfers by will or the laws of descent and distribution. 6. Conversion of Performance Units; Issuance of Common Stock. On or as soon as administratively practicable following the last day of the Performance Period,

and in any event, no later than March 15 of the year following the year in which the vesting event occurs (which payment schedule is intended to comply with the “short-term deferral” exemption from the application of Section 409A of the Code), unless such payment is deferred in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Corporation’s non- qualified compensation deferral plans, the Corporation shall deliver to the Participant the respective number of 2



 

shares of Common Stock (either by delivering one or more certificates for such shares or by entering such shares in book entry form, as determined by the Corporation in its discretion) for the Performance Units (if any) that vest in accordance with Section 2, unless such Performance Units terminate prior to the given vesting date pursuant to Section 7. The Corporation’s obligation to deliver shares of Common Stock with respect to any vested Performance Units is subject to the condition precedent that the Participant or other person entitled under the Plan to receive any shares with respect to the vested Performance Units deliver to the Corporation any representations or other documents or assurances required pursuant to Section 14 of the Plan. The Participant shall have no further rights with respect to any Performance Units that are paid or that are terminated pursuant to Section 7. 7. Effect of Termination of Employment. If the Participant’s Service ceases for any reason (the last day that the Participant’s Service is referred to as the Participant’s “Severance Date”), the Participant’s Performance Units, to the extent unvested on the Severance Date, shall terminate and be forfeited as of the Severance Date. If any unvested Performance Units are terminated hereunder, such Performance Units shall automatically terminate and be cancelled as of the applicable termination date without payment of any consideration by the Corporation and without any other action by the Participant, or the Participant’s beneficiary or personal representative, as the case may be. 8. Adjustments Upon Specified Events. The Committee may accelerate payment and vesting of the Performance Units in such circumstances as it, in its sole discretion, may determine. In addition, upon the occurrence of certain events relating to the Corporation’s stock contemplated by Section 4.2 of the Plan (including, without limitation, an extraordinary cash dividend on such stock), the Committee shall
make adjustments in the number of Performance Units then outstanding and the number and kind of securities that may be issued in respect of the Award. No such adjustment shall be made with respect to any ordinary cash dividend paid on the Common Stock. Furthermore, the Committee shall adjust the performance measures and performance goals referenced in Exhibit A hereof to the extent (if any) it determines that the adjustment is necessary or advisable to preserve the intended incentives and benefits to reflect (1) any material change in corporate capitalization, any material corporate transaction (such as a reorganization, combination, separation, merger, acquisition, or any combination of the foregoing), or any complete or partial liquidation of the Corporation, (2) any change in accounting policies or practices, (3) the effects of any special charges to the Corporation’s earnings, or (4) any other similar special circumstances. 9. Tax Withholding. Subject to Section 16 of the Plan and such rules and procedures as the Committee may impose, upon any distribution of shares of Common Stock in respect of the Award, the Corporation shall automatically reduce the number of shares to be delivered by (or otherwise reacquire) the appropriate number of whole shares, valued at their then Fair Market Value, to satisfy any withholding obligations of the Corporation or its Subsidiary Corporations with respect to such distribution of shares at the minimum applicable withholding rates; provided, however, that the foregoing provision shall not apply in the event that the Participant has, subject to the approval of the Committee, made other provision in advance of the date of such distribution for the satisfaction of such withholding obligations. In the event that the Corporation cannot legally satisfy such withholding obligations by such reduction of shares, or in the event of a cash payment or any other withholding event in respect of the Award, the Corporation (or a

Subsidiary Corporation) shall be entitled to require a cash payment by or on behalf of the Participant and/or to deduct from other compensation payable to the Participant any sums required by federal, state or local tax law to be withheld with respect to such distribution or payment. 10. Non-Solicitation. 10.1 Non-Solicitation (Employees). The Participant acknowledges and agrees that during the period of Participant’s employment by the Corporation (or any subsidiary), and for a period of one (1) year after termination of Participant’s Service Relationship for any reason, with or without Cause, Participant shall not directly or indirectly, either alone or in concert with others, solicit, entice, or encourage the hiring of any employee of the Corporation (or any Subsidiary) unless such person was involuntarily terminated or laid off by the Corporation (or any subsidiary). 3



 

10.2 Non-Solicitation (Customers). During the Participant’s employment with the Corporation and for a period of one (1) year after the Participant’s date of termination, the Participant shall not, directly or indirectly: (i) contact or solicit, or direct any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity to contact or solicit, any of the Corporation’s customers for the purpose of providing any products and/or services that are the same as or similar to the products and services provided by the Corporation to its customers during the term of the Corporation’s employment; or (ii) divert or attempt to divert, for his direct or indirect benefit, or for the benefit of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, the business of any customer of the Corporation; or (iii) influence or attempt to influence any customer of the Corporation to transfer its business to the Participant or any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity; or (iv) in any other manner knowingly interfere with, disrupt or attempt to disrupt the relationship of the Corporation with any of its customers[, and in each of (i) through (iv) if such activities post-termination of employment involve the use of trade secrets or other confidential information, as defined in Section 12, of the Corporation]. In addition, the Corporation will not disclose the identity of any such customers to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other entity for any reason or purpose whatsoever. 11. Nondisparagement. The Participant agrees that he/she will not disparage the Corporation or its directors, officers, employees, affiliates, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors or assigns in any written or oral communications to any third party. The Participant further agrees that he/she will not direct anyone to make any disparaging oral or written remarks to any third parties. 12. Confidentiality. The Participant agrees to keep and maintain in strict confidence all confidential and proprietary information of the
Corporation (or any subsidiary) during and after the term of employment by the Corporation, and to never directly or indirectly make known, divulge, reveal, furnish, make available, or use any confidential information (except in the course of regular authorized duties on behalf of the Corporation or any subsidiary). Participant’s obligations of confidentiality hereunder shall survive termination of employment regardless of any actual or alleged breach by the Corporation (or any subsidiary) in connection with such termination, until and unless any such confidential information shall have become, through no fault of Participant, generally known to the public or unless Participant is required by law to make disclosure (after giving the Corporation or any subsidiary notice and an opportunity to contest such requirement). Participant’s obligations under this Section are in addition to and not in limitation or preemption of all other obligations of confidentiality which Participant has to the Corporation under general legal or equitable principles. All documents and other property including or reflecting confidential information furnished to Participant by the Corporation or otherwise acquired or developed by the Corporation shall at all times be the property of the Corporation (or any subsidiary). Upon termination of employment, Participant shall return to the Corporation (or any subsidiary) any such documents or other property (including copies, summaries, or analyses of the foregoing) of the Corporation (or any subsidiary) which are in Participant’s possession, custody, or control. 13. [NON-CALIFORNIA EMPLOYEE ONLY] [Non-Competition. During the Participant’s employment with the Corporation and for a period of one (1) year after the Participant’s date of termination, the Participant shall not, recognizing the national scope of the Corporation’s business, directly or indirectly, engage, or participate in or in any way render services or assistance to (including,

without limitation, as an officer, director, employee, consultant, agent, lender or equityholder) any business that competes, directly or indirectly, with any product or service of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates within the United States of America.] 14. Notices. Any notice to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Corporation at its principal office to the attention of the Secretary, and to the Participant at the Participant’s last address reflected on the Corporation’s records, or at such other address as either party may hereafter designate in writing to the other. Any such notice shall be given only when received, but if the Participant is no longer an employee of the Corporation, shall be deemed to have been duly given by the Corporation when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as aforesaid, registered or certified, and deposited (postage and registry or 4



 

certification fee prepaid) in a post office or branch post office regularly maintained by the United States Government. 15. Plan. The Award and all rights of the Participant under this Agreement are subject to, and the Participant agrees to be bound by, all of the terms and conditions of the provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and those of the Plan, the terms and conditions of the Plan shall govern. The Participant acknowledges having read and understood the Plan, the Prospectus for the Plan, and this Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly provided in other sections of this Agreement, provisions of the Plan that confer discretionary authority on the Committee do not (and shall not be deemed to) create any rights in the Participant unless such rights are expressly set forth herein or are otherwise in the sole discretion of the Committee so conferred by appropriate action of the Committee under the Plan after the date hereof. 16. Construction; Section 409A. It is intended that the terms of the Award will not result in the imposition of any tax liability pursuant to Section 409A of the Code. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted consistent with that intent. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if the Participant is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A and, as a result of that status, any portion of the payments under this Agreement would otherwise be subject to taxation pursuant to Code Section 409A, the Participant shall not be entitled to any payments upon a termination of his Service until the earlier of (i) the date which is six (6) months after his termination of Service for any reason other than death, or (ii) the date of the Participant’s death; provided the first such payment thereafter shall include all amounts that would have been paid earlier but for such six (6) month delay. The
Corporation and the Participant agree to act reasonably and to cooperate to amend or modify this Agreement to the extent reasonably necessary to avoid the imposition of the tax under Code Section 409A. 17. Entire Agreement; Applicability of Other Agreements. This Agreement and the Plan, together constitute the entire agreement and supersede all prior understandings and agreements, written or oral, of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. The Plan and this Agreement may be amended pursuant to Section 17 of the Plan. Such amendment must be in writing and signed by the Corporation. The Corporation may, however, unilaterally waive any provision hereof in writing to the extent such waiver does not adversely affect the interests of the Participant hereunder, but no such waiver shall operate as or be construed to be a subsequent waiver of the same provision or a waiver of any other provision hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is subject to a written employment, change in control or similar agreement with the Corporation that is in effect as of the Participant’s Severance Date and the Participant would be entitled under the express provisions of such agreement to greater rights with respect to accelerated vesting of the Award in connection with the termination of the Participant’s employment in the circumstances, the provisions of such agreement shall control with respect to such vesting rights, and the corresponding provisions of this Agreement shall not apply. 18. Limitation on Participant’s Rights. Participation in this Plan confers no rights or interests other than as herein provided. This Agreement creates only a contractual obligation on the part of the Corporation as to amounts payable and shall not be construed as creating a trust. Neither the Plan nor any underlying program, in and of itself, has any assets. The Participant shall have only the rights of a general unsecured creditor of the Corporation (or

applicable Subsidiary Corporation) with respect to amounts credited and benefits payable in cash, if any, with respect to the Performance Units, and rights no greater than the right to receive the Common Stock (or equivalent value) as a general unsecured creditor with respect to Performance Units, as and when payable thereunder. 19. Forfeiture and Corporation’s Right to Recover Fair Market Value of Shares Received Pursuant to Performance Units. If, at any time, the Board or the Committee, as the case may be, in its sole discretion determines that any action or omission by Participant constituted (a) wrongdoing that contributed to (i) any material misstatement in or omission from any report or statement filed by the Corporation with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 5



 

or (ii) a statement, certification, cost report, claim for payment, or other filing made under Medicare or Medicaid that was false, fraudulent, or for an item or service not provided as claimed, (b) intentional or gross misconduct, (c) a breach of a fiduciary duty to the Corporation or a Subsidiary Corporation, (d) fraud or (e) non-compliance with the Corporation’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, policies or procedures to the material detriment of the Corporation, then in each such case, commencing with the first fiscal year of the Corporation during which such action or omission occurred, Participant shall forfeit (without any payment therefore) up to 100% of any Performance Units that have not been vested or settled and shall repay to the Corporation, upon notice to Participant by the Corporation, up to 100% of the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock at the time such shares were delivered to the Participant pursuant to the Performance Units during and after such fiscal year. The Board or the Committee, as the case may be, shall determine in its sole discretion the date of occurrence of such action or omission, the percentage of the Performance Units that shall be forfeited and the percentage of the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock delivered pursuant to the Performance Units that must be repaid to the Corporation. 20. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 21. Section Headings. The section headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to alter or affect any provision hereof. 22. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of [Delaware]/[California] without regard to conflict of law principles thereunder. 6
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Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement This RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) effective as of [DATE] is between Molina Healthcare, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and [NAME OF EMPLOYEE], an employee of the Company or one of its Affiliates (the “Grantee”), pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions of the Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Company desires to award to the Grantee a number of shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), subject to certain restrictions as provided in this Agreement, in order to carry out the purpose of the Plan. The purpose of this Agreement is to evidence the terms and conditions of an award of restricted stock granted to the Grantee under the Plan. Accordingly, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Grantee hereby agree as follows: Section 1. Award of Restricted Stock. Effective as of [DATE] (the “Effective Date”), the Company grants to the Grantee a restricted stock award of [NUMBER OF SHARES] shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”), subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in accordance with the terms of the Plan (the “Restricted Stock Award”). Section 2. Rights with Respect to the Shares. (a) Stockholder Rights. With respect to the Shares, the Grantee shall be entitled at all times on and after the date of issuance of the Shares to exercise the rights of a stockholder of Common Stock of the Company, including the right to vote the Shares and the right to receive dividends on the Shares as provided in Section 2(b) hereof, unless and until the Shares are forfeited pursuant to Section 3 hereof. However, the Shares shall be nontransferable and subject to a risk of forfeiture to the Company at all times prior to the dates
on which such Shares become vested, and the restrictions with respect to the Shares lapse, in accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. (b) Dividends. As a condition to receiving the Shares under the Plan, the Grantee hereby agrees to defer the receipt of dividends paid on the Shares. Cash dividends or other cash distributions paid with respect to the Shares prior to the date or dates the Shares vest shall be subject to the same restrictions, terms, and conditions as the Shares to which they relate, shall be promptly deposited with the Secretary of the Company or a custodian designated by the Secretary, and shall be forfeited in the event that the Shares with respect to which the dividends were paid are forfeited. (c) Issuance of Shares. The Company shall cause the Shares to be issued in the Grantee’s name or in a nominee name on the Grantee’s behalf, either by book-entry registration or issuance of a stock certificate or certificates evidencing the Shares, which certificate or certificates shall be held by the Secretary of the Company or the stock transfer agent or brokerage service selected by the Secretary of the Company to provide such services for the Plan. The Shares shall be restricted from transfer and shall be subject to an appropriate stop-transfer order. If any certificate is issued, the certificate shall bear an appropriate legend referring to the restrictions applicable to the Shares. The Grantee hereby agrees to the retention by the Company of the Shares and, if a stock certificate is issued, the Grantee agrees to execute and deliver to the Company a blank stock power with respect to the Shares as a condition to the receipt of this Restricted Stock Award. After any Shares vest pursuant to Section 3 hereof, and following payment of the applicable withholding taxes pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement, the Company shall promptly cause to be issued a certificate or certificates, registered in the Grantee’s name, evidencing such vested whole Shares (less any Shares

withheld to pay withholding taxes) and shall cause such certificate or certificates to be delivered to the Grantee free of the legend and the stop-transfer order referenced above. The Company will not deliver any fractional Share but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Value of such fractional Share at the time certificates evidencing the Shares are delivered to the Grantee. {00417967;1}



 

Section 3. Vesting; Forfeiture. (a) Vesting. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, [one-third (1/3rd)] of the Shares shall vest, and the restrictions with respect to the Shares shall lapse, on each of the [first, second, and third anniversaries] of the Effective Date if the Grantee remains continuously employed by the Company or an Affiliate of the Company until such respective vesting dates. (b) Forfeiture. If the Grantee ceases to be employed by the Company and all Affiliates of the Company for any reason prior to the vesting of the Shares pursuant to Section 3(a) hereof, Grantee’s rights to all of the unvested Shares shall be treated in accordance with the terms of his Employment Agreement with the Company, dated as of [DATE] (the “Employment Agreement”). (c) No Early Vesting. Except as provided in the Employment Agreement or unless otherwise determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, in no event will any of the Shares vest prior to their respective vesting dates set forth in Section 3(a) hereof. Section 4. Restrictions on Transfer. Until the Shares vest pursuant to Section 3 hereof, neither the Shares, nor any right with respect to the Shares under this Agreement, may be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated (by operation of law or otherwise) or otherwise conveyed or encumbered and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process. Any attempted sale, assignment, transfer, pledge, hypothecation or other conveyance or encumbrance shall be void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate of the Company. Section 5. Distributions and Adjustments. (a) If any Shares vest subsequent to any change in the number or character of the Common Stock of the Company through any stock dividend or other distribution, recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchange of shares or other securities of the
Company, issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase shares of Common Stock or other securities of the Company or other similar corporate transaction or event such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee to be appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under this Agreement, then the Committee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable, in its sole discretion, adjust any or all of the number and type of such Shares. (b) Any additional shares of Common Stock of the Company, any other securities of the Company and any other property distributed with respect to the Shares prior to the date or dates the Shares vest shall be subject to the same restrictions, terms and conditions as the Shares to which they relate and shall be promptly deposited with the Secretary of the Company or a custodian designated by the Secretary. Section 6. Taxes. (a) The Grantee acknowledges that the Grantee will consult with the Grantee’s personal tax adviser regarding the income tax consequences of the grant of the Shares, payment of dividends on the Shares, the vesting of the Shares and any other matters related to this Agreement. In order to comply with all applicable federal, state, local or foreign income tax laws or regulations, the Company may take such action as it deems appropriate to ensure that all applicable federal, state, local or foreign payroll, withholding, income or other taxes, which are the Grantee’s sole and absolute responsibility, are withheld or collected from the Grantee. {00417967;1} 2



 

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and such rules as may be adopted by the Committee administering the Plan, the Grantee may elect to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising from the receipt of, or the lapse of restrictions relating to, the Shares by (i) delivering cash, check, bank draft, money order or wire transfer payable to the order of the Company, (ii) having the Company withhold a portion of the Shares otherwise to be delivered having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes, or (iii) delivering to the Company shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes. The Company will not deliver any fractional Share but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Value of such fractional Share. The Grantee’s election must be made on or before the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is determined. If the Grantee does not make an election, the Company will withhold a portion of the Shares otherwise to be delivered having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes. Section 7. Non-Solicitation. (a) Non-Solicitation (Employees). The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that during the period of Grantee’s employment by the Company (or any Subsidiary), and for a period of one (1) year after termination of Grantee’s Service Relationship for any reason, with or without Cause, Grantee shall not directly or indirectly, either alone or in concert with others, solicit, entice, or encourage the hiring of any employee of the Company (or any Subsidiary) unless such person was involuntarily terminated or laid off by the Company (or any Subsidiary). (b) Non-Solicitation (Customers). During the Grantee’s employment with the Company and for a period of one (1) year after the Grantee’s date of termination, the Grantee shall not, directly or indirectly: (i) contact or solicit, or direct any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity to contact or solicit, any of the Company’s customers for the
purpose of providing any products and/or services that are the same as or similar to the products and services provided by the Company to its customers during the term of the Company’s employment; or (ii) divert or attempt to divert, for his direct or indirect benefit, or for the benefit of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, the business of any customer of the Company; or (iii) influence or attempt to influence any customer of the Company to transfer its business to the Grantee or any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity; or (iv) in any other manner knowingly interfere with, disrupt or attempt to disrupt the relationship of the Company with any of its customers, and in each of (i) through (iv) if such activities post- termination of employment involve the use of trade secrets or other confidential information, as defined in Section 9, of the Company. In addition, the Company will not disclose the identity of any such customers to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other entity for any reason or purpose whatsoever. Section 8. Nondisparagement. The Grantee agrees that he/she will not disparage the Company or its directors, officers, employees, affiliates, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors or assigns in any written or oral communications to any third party. The Grantee further agrees that he/she will not direct anyone to make any disparaging oral or written remarks to any third parties. Section 9. Confidentiality. The Grantee agrees to keep and maintain in strict confidence all confidential and proprietary information of the Company (or any Subsidiary) during and after the term of employment by the Company, and to never directly or indirectly make known, divulge, reveal, furnish, make available, or use any confidential information (except in the course of regular authorized duties on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary). Grantee’s obligations of confidentiality hereunder shall survive termination of

employment regardless of any actual or alleged breach by the Company (or any Subsidiary) in connection with such termination, until and unless any such confidential information shall have become, through no fault of Grantee, generally known to the public or unless Grantee is required by law to make disclosure (after giving the Company or any Subsidiary notice and an opportunity to contest such requirement). Grantee’s obligations under this Section are in addition to and not in limitation or preemption of all other {00417967;1} 3



 

obligations of confidentiality which Grantee has to the Company under general legal or equitable principles. All documents and other property including or reflecting confidential information furnished to Grantee by the Company or otherwise acquired or developed by the Company shall at all times be the property of the Company (or any Subsidiary). Upon termination of employment, Grantee shall return to the Company (or any Subsidiary) any such documents or other property (including copies, summaries, or analyses of the foregoing) of the Company (or any Subsidiary) which are in Grantee’s possession, custody, or control. Section 10. Definitions. Terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them in the Plan. Section 11. Governing Law. The internal law, and not the law of conflicts, of the State of California will govern all questions concerning the validity, construction and effect of this Agreement. Section 12. Plan Provisions. This Agreement is made under and subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Company’s Change in Control Severance Plan, as may be amended from time to time (the “Change in Control Severance Plan”), and all of the provisions of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Change in Control Severance Plan, are also provisions of this Agreement. If there is a difference or conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Change in Control Severance Plan, then the provisions of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Change in Control Severance Plan will govern. By accepting this Restricted Stock Award, the Grantee confirms that the Grantee has received a copy of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Change in Control Severance Plan, and represents that the Grantee is familiar with the terms and provisions of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Change in Control
Severance Plan, and hereby accepts this Restricted Stock Award subject to all the terms and provisions of the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and the Change in Control Severance Plan. Section 13. No Rights to Continue Service or Employment. Nothing herein shall be construed as giving the Grantee the right to continue in the employ or to provide services to the Company or any Affiliate, whether as an employee or as a consultant or otherwise, or interfere with or restrict in any way the right of the Company or any Affiliate to discharge the Grantee, whether as an employee or consultant or otherwise, at any time, with or without cause. Subject to the terms of the Grantee’s Employment Agreement, the Company or any Affiliate may discharge the Grantee free from any liability or claim under this Agreement. Section 14. Entire Agreement. With the exception of the Grantee’s Employment Agreement and the Change in Control Severance Plan, this Agreement together with the Plan supersede any and all other prior understandings and agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and constitute the sole and only agreements between the parties with respect to said subject matter. All prior negotiations and agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof are merged into this Agreement. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any party or by anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied in this Agreement or the Plan and that any agreement, statement or promise that is not contained in this Agreement or the Plan shall not be valid or binding or of any force or effect. {00417967;1} 4



 

Section 15. Modification. No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon the parties unless the change or modification is in writing and signed by the parties. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Plan, this Agreement and the Restricted Stock Award may be amended, altered, suspended, discontinued or terminated to the extent permitted by the Plan. Section 16. Shares Subject to Agreement. The Shares shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in Section 5, no adjustment shall be made for dividends or other rights for which the record date is prior to the issuance of the Shares. The Company shall not be required to deliver any Shares until the requirements of any federal or state securities or other laws, rules or regulations (including the rules of any securities exchange) as may be determined by the Committee to be applicable are satisfied. Section 17. Severability. In the event that any provision that is contained in the Plan or this Agreement is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction or would disqualify the Plan or this Agreement for any reason and under any law as deemed applicable by the Committee, the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the purpose or intent of the Plan or this Agreement, such provision shall be stricken as to such jurisdiction or Shares, and the remainder of the Plan or this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Section 18. Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsections of this Agreement solely as a convenience to facilitate reference. Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or interpretation of this Agreement or any provision hereof. Section 19.
Grantee’s Acknowledgments. The Grantee hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Committee or the Board of Directors of the Company, as appropriate, upon any questions arising under the Plan or this Agreement. Any determination in this connection by the Company, including the Board of Directors of the Company or the Committee, shall be final, binding and conclusive. The obligations of the Company and the rights of the Grantee are subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Section 20. Parties Bound. The terms, provisions and agreements that are contained in this Agreement shall apply to, be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives and permitted successors and assigns, subject to the limitation on assignment expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall have no force or effect unless it is duly executed and delivered by the Company. Section 21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but both of which when taken together shall constitute a single contract. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement by telecopy shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. {00417967;1} 5



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has executed this Agreement, in the case of the Company by its duly authorized officer, effective as of the day and year first above written. MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. By: [NAME] Its: [TITLE] GRANTEE [NAME] {00417967;1} 6



 



MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. 2019 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT THIS PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated [DATE], by and between MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”), and [NAME] (the “Participant”), evidences the award of Performance Units (the “Award”) granted by the Corporation to the Participant as to the number of Performance Units first set forth below. Total Number of Performance Units:1 [NUMBER OF UNITS] Award Date: [DATE] Performance Period for the Award: [PERFORMANCE PERIOD] Vesting1, 2 The Award shall vest and become nonforfeitable as provided in Section 2 of the attached Terms and Conditions of Performance Unit Award (the “Terms”). The Award is granted under the MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. 2019 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN (the “Plan”) and that certain Employment Agreement, dated as of [DATE] (the “Employment Agreement”), by and between the Corporation and the Participant, and is subject to the Terms attached to this Agreement (incorporated herein by this reference) and to the Plan and the Employment Agreement. The Award has been granted to the Participant in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other form of compensation otherwise payable or to be paid to the Participant. Capitalized terms are defined in the Plan if not defined herein. The parties agree to the terms of the Award set forth herein. The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Terms, the Employment Agreement, the Plan, and the Prospectus for the Plan. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the Corporation may deliver, by electronic mail, the use of the Internet, including through the website of the agent appointed by the Committee to administer the Plan, the Corporation intranet web pages or otherwise, any information concerning the Corporation, this
Award, the Plan, and any information required by the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. PARTICIPANT MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC. a Delaware corporation By: [NAME] [NAME]/[TITLE] 1 Subject to adjustment under Section 4.2 of the Plan. 2 Subject to early termination under Section 10.7 of the Plan.



 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PERFORMANCE UNIT AWARD 1. Performance Units. Each Performance Unit constitutes an unfunded and unsecured promise of the Corporation to deliver up to two shares of the Corporation’s common stock to the Participant (subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.2 of the Plan) pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, subject to the vesting provisions in Exhibit A. The Performance Units shall be used solely as a device for the determination of the payment to eventually be made to the Participant if such Performance Units vest pursuant to Section 2. The Performance Units shall not be treated as property or as a trust fund of any kind. 2. Vesting. Subject to Section 7, the Award shall vest and become nonforfeitable at the vesting percentage levels set forth in Exhibit A, based on the achievement of the Performance Goals established by the Committee and set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto for the Performance Period. In the event that the performance condition with respect to the Award is achieved, the Award shall become unconditionally due. Subject to Section 7, any Performance Units subject to the Award that do not vest in accordance with Exhibit A shall terminate as of the last day of the Performance Period. 3. Continuance of Service. Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 7 below, the vesting schedule requires continued Service through each applicable vesting date as a condition to the vesting of the Award and the rights and benefits under this Agreement; and Service for only a portion of any vesting period, even if a substantial portion, will not entitle the Participant to any proportionate vesting or avoid or mitigate a termination of rights and benefits upon or following a termination of Participant’s Service as provided in Section 7 below or under the Plan for such vesting period (or for any later vesting period). Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Plan constitutes an employment or
service commitment by the Corporation, affects the contractual obligations pursuant to any employment or service commitment agreement if Participant is party to such agreement, or in the absence of such agreement affects Participant’s status as an employee at will who is subject to termination without cause, confers upon the Participant any right to remain employed by or in service to the Corporation or any Subsidiary Corporation, interferes in any way with the right of the Corporation or any Subsidiary Corporation at any time to terminate Participant’s Service, or affects the right of the Corporation or any Subsidiary Corporation to increase or decrease the Participant’s other compensation or benefits. Nothing in this paragraph, however, is intended to adversely affect any independent contractual right of the Participant without his consent thereto. 4. Limitations on Rights Associated with Performance Units. The Participant shall have no rights as a stockholder of the Corporation, no dividend rights and no voting rights with respect to the Performance Units and any shares of Common Stock underlying or issuable in respect of such Performance Units until such shares of Common Stock are actually issued to and held of record by the Participant. No adjustments will be made for dividends or other rights of a holder for which the record date is prior to the date of issuance of the stock certificate. 5. Restrictions on Transfer. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, neither the Award, nor any interest therein may be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of, alienated or encumbered, either voluntarily or involuntarily. The transfer restrictions in the preceding sentence shall not apply to (a) transfers to the Corporation, or (b) transfers by will or the laws of descent and distribution. 6. Conversion of Performance Units; Issuance of Common Stock. On or as soon as administratively practicable following the last day of the Performance Period,

and in any event, no later than March 15 of the year following the year in which the vesting event occurs (which payment schedule is intended to comply with the “short-term deferral” exemption from the application of Section 409A of the Code), unless such payment is deferred in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Corporation’s non- qualified compensation deferral plans, the Corporation shall deliver to the Participant the respective number of 2



 

shares of Common Stock (either by delivering one or more certificates for such shares or by entering such shares in book entry form, as determined by the Corporation in its discretion) for the Performance Units (if any) that vest in accordance with Section 2, unless such Performance Units terminate prior to the given vesting date pursuant to Section 7. The Corporation’s obligation to deliver shares of Common Stock with respect to any vested Performance Units is subject to the condition precedent that the Participant or other person entitled under the Plan to receive any shares with respect to the vested Performance Units deliver to the Corporation any representations or other documents or assurances required pursuant to Section 14 of the Plan. The Participant shall have no further rights with respect to any Performance Units that are paid or that are terminated pursuant to Section 7. 7. Effect of Change in Control or Termination of Employment. 7.1 Effect of Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, if, within twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control, the Participant’s Service is terminated by the Corporation without Cause or the Participant terminates his employment for Good Reason, then the Performance Units shall become immediately 100% vested and the Corporation shall deliver to the Participant the greater of (i) one share of Common Stock for each Performance Unit that vested as result of such termination, or (ii) such greater number of shares of Common Stock for each Performance Unit that the Participant may be entitled to receive pursuant to the Corporation’s change in control severance plan, as may be amended from time to time. 7.2 Effect of Termination of Participant’s Service. If the Participant’s Service ceases for any reason other than as set forth in Section 7.1 (the last day that the Participant’s Service is referred to as the Participant’s “Severance Date”), the Participant’s Performance Units, to the extent unvested
on the Severance Date, shall terminate and be forfeited as of the Severance Date. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings. “Cause” shall have the meaning given to such term in the Employment Agreement. “Employment Agreement” shall mean the Employment Agreement made as of [DATE], between the Participant and the Corporation, as may be amended from time to time. “Good Reason” shall have the meaning given to such term in the Employment Agreement. If any unvested Performance Units are terminated hereunder, such Performance Units shall automatically terminate and be cancelled as of the applicable termination date without payment of any consideration by the Corporation and without any other action by the Participant, or the Participant’s beneficiary or personal representative, as the case may be. 8. Adjustments Upon Specified Events. The Committee may accelerate payment and vesting of the Performance Units in such circumstances as it, in its sole discretion, may determine. In addition, upon the occurrence of certain events relating to the Corporation’s stock contemplated by Section 4.2 of the Plan (including, without limitation, an extraordinary cash dividend on such stock), the Committee shall make adjustments in the number of Performance Units then outstanding and the number and kind of securities that may be issued in respect of the Award. No such adjustment shall be made with respect to any ordinary cash dividend paid on the Common Stock. Furthermore, the Committee shall adjust the performance measures and performance goals referenced in Exhibit A hereof to the extent (if any) it determines that the adjustment is necessary or advisable to preserve the intended incentives and benefits to reflect (1) any material change in corporate capitalization, any material corporate transaction (such as a reorganization, combination, separation, merger, acquisition, or any

combination of the foregoing), or any complete or partial liquidation of the Corporation, (2) any change in accounting policies or practices, (3) the effects of any special charges to the Corporation’s earnings, or (4) any other similar special circumstances. 9. Tax Withholding. Subject to Section 16 of the Plan and such rules and procedures as the Committee may impose, upon any distribution of shares of Common Stock in respect of the Award, the Corporation shall automatically reduce the 3



 

number of shares to be delivered by (or otherwise reacquire) the appropriate number of whole shares, valued at their then Fair Market Value, to satisfy any withholding obligations of the Corporation or its Subsidiary Corporations with respect to such distribution of shares at the minimum applicable withholding rates; provided, however, that the foregoing provision shall not apply in the event that the Participant has, subject to the approval of the Committee, made other provision in advance of the date of such distribution for the satisfaction of such withholding obligations. In the event that the Corporation cannot legally satisfy such withholding obligations by such reduction of shares, or in the event of a cash payment or any other withholding event in respect of the Award, the Corporation (or a Subsidiary Corporation) shall be entitled to require a cash payment by or on behalf of the Participant and/or to deduct from other compensation payable to the Participant any sums required by federal, state or local tax law to be withheld with respect to such distribution or payment. 10. Non-Solicitation. 10.1 Non-Solicitation (Employees). The Participant acknowledges and agrees that during the period of Participant’s employment by the Corporation (or any subsidiary), and for a period of one (1) year after termination of Participant’s Service Relationship for any reason, with or without Cause, Participant shall not directly or indirectly, either alone or in concert with others, solicit, entice, or encourage the hiring of any employee of the Corporation (or any Subsidiary) unless such person was involuntarily terminated or laid off by the Corporation (or any subsidiary). 10.2 Non-Solicitation (Customers). During the Participant’s employment with the Corporation and for a period of one (1) year after the Participant’s date of termination, the Participant shall not, directly or indirectly: (i) contact or solicit, or direct any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity to
contact or solicit, any of the Corporation’s customers for the purpose of providing any products and/or services that are the same as or similar to the products and services provided by the Corporation to its customers during the term of the Corporation’s employment; or (ii) divert or attempt to divert, for his direct or indirect benefit, or for the benefit of any other person, firm, corporation, association or other entity, the business of any customer of the Corporation; or (iii) influence or attempt to influence any customer of the Corporation to transfer its business to the Participant or any person, firm, corporation, association or other entity; or (iv) in any other manner knowingly interfere with, disrupt or attempt to disrupt the relationship of the Corporation with any of its customers, and in each of (i) through (iv) if such activities post-termination of employment involve the use of trade secrets or other confidential information, as defined in Section 12, of the Corporation. In addition, the Corporation will not disclose the identity of any such customers to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other entity for any reason or purpose whatsoever. 11. Nondisparagement. The Participant agrees that he/she will not disparage the Corporation or its directors, officers, employees, affiliates, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors or assigns in any written or oral communications to any third party. The Participant further agrees that he/she will not direct anyone to make any disparaging oral or written remarks to any third parties. 12. Confidentiality. The Participant agrees to keep and maintain in strict confidence all confidential and proprietary information of the Corporation (or any subsidiary) during and after the term of employment by the Corporation, and to never directly or indirectly make known, divulge, reveal, furnish, make available, or use any confidential information (except in the course of regular authorized duties on behalf of the Corporation or any subsidiary).

Participant’s obligations of confidentiality hereunder shall survive termination of employment regardless of any actual or alleged breach by the Corporation (or any subsidiary) in connection with such termination, until and unless any such confidential information shall have become, through no fault of Participant, generally known to the public or unless Participant is required by law to make disclosure (after giving the Corporation or any subsidiary notice and an opportunity to contest such requirement). Participant’s obligations under this Section are in addition to and not in limitation or preemption of all other obligations of confidentiality which Participant has to the Corporation under general legal or equitable principles. All documents and other property including or reflecting confidential information furnished to Participant by the Corporation or otherwise acquired or developed by the Corporation shall at all times be the property of the Corporation (or any subsidiary). Upon termination of employment, Participant shall return to the Corporation (or any subsidiary) any such documents or other property (including copies, 4



 

summaries, or analyses of the foregoing) of the Corporation (or any subsidiary) which are in Participant’s possession, custody, or control. 13. Notices. Any notice to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Corporation at its principal office to the attention of the Secretary, and to the Participant at the Participant’s last address reflected on the Corporation’s records, or at such other address as either party may hereafter designate in writing to the other. Any such notice shall be given only when received, but if the Participant is no longer an employee of the Corporation, shall be deemed to have been duly given by the Corporation when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as aforesaid, registered or certified, and deposited (postage and registry or certification fee prepaid) in a post office or branch post office regularly maintained by the United States Government. 14. Plan and Employment Agreement. The Award and all rights of the Participant under this Agreement are subject to, and the Participant agrees to be bound by, all of the terms and conditions of the provisions of the Plan and the Employment Agreement, both of which are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and those of the Plan and the Employment Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan and the Employment Agreement shall govern. The Participant acknowledges having read and understood the Plan, the Prospectus for the Plan, the Employment Agreement, and this Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly provided in other sections of this Agreement, provisions of the Plan and the Employment Agreement that confer discretionary authority on the Committee do not (and shall not be deemed to) create any rights in the Participant unless such rights are expressly set forth herein or are otherwise in the sole discretion of the Committee so conferred by
appropriate action of the Committee under the Plan and the Employment Agreement after the date hereof. 15. Construction; Section 409A. It is intended that the terms of the Award will not result in the imposition of any tax liability pursuant to Section 409A of the Code. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted consistent with that intent. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if the Participant is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A and, as a result of that status, any portion of the payments under this Agreement would otherwise be subject to taxation pursuant to Code Section 409A, the Participant shall not be entitled to any payments upon a termination of his Service until the earlier of (i) the date which is six (6) months after his termination of Service for any reason other than death, or (ii) the date of the Participant’s death; provided the first such payment thereafter shall include all amounts that would have been paid earlier but for such six (6) month delay. The Corporation and the Participant agree to act reasonably and to cooperate to amend or modify this Agreement to the extent reasonably necessary to avoid the imposition of the tax under Code Section 409A. 16. Entire Agreement; Applicability of Other Agreements. This Agreement, the Plan, and the Employment Agreement together constitute the entire agreement and supersede all prior understandings and agreements, written or oral, of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. The Plan and this Agreement may be amended pursuant to Section 17 of the Plan. Such amendment must be in writing and signed by the Corporation. The Corporation may, however, unilaterally waive any provision hereof in writing to the extent such waiver does not adversely affect the interests of the Participant hereunder, but no such waiver shall operate as or be construed to be a subsequent waiver of the same provision or a waiver of any other

provision hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is subject to a written employment, change in control or similar agreement with the Corporation that is in effect as of the Participant’s Severance Date and the Participant would be entitled under the express provisions of such agreement to greater rights with respect to accelerated vesting of the Award in connection with the termination of the Participant’s employment in the circumstances, the provisions of such agreement shall control with respect to such vesting rights, and the corresponding provisions of this Agreement shall not apply. 17. Limitation on Participant’s Rights. Participation in this Plan confers no rights or interests other than as herein provided. This Agreement creates only a contractual obligation on the part of the Corporation as to amounts payable and shall not be construed 5



 

as creating a trust. Neither the Plan nor any underlying program, in and of itself, has any assets. The Participant shall have only the rights of a general unsecured creditor of the Corporation (or applicable Subsidiary Corporation) with respect to amounts credited and benefits payable in cash, if any, with respect to the Performance Units, and rights no greater than the right to receive the Common Stock (or equivalent value) as a general unsecured creditor with respect to Performance Units, as and when payable thereunder. 18. Forfeiture and Corporation’s Right to Recover Fair Market Value of Shares Received Pursuant to Performance Units. If, at any time, the Board or the Committee, as the case may be, in its sole discretion determines that any action or omission by Participant constituted (a) wrongdoing that contributed to (i) any material misstatement in or omission from any report or statement filed by the Corporation with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or (ii) a statement, certification, cost report, claim for payment, or other filing made under Medicare or Medicaid that was false, fraudulent, or for an item or service not provided as claimed, (b) intentional or gross misconduct, (c) a breach of a fiduciary duty to the Corporation or a Subsidiary Corporation, (d) fraud or (e) non-compliance with the Corporation’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, policies or procedures to the material detriment of the Corporation, then in each such case, commencing with the first fiscal year of the Corporation during which such action or omission occurred, Participant shall forfeit (without any payment therefore) up to 100% of any Performance Units that have not been vested or settled and shall repay to the Corporation, upon notice to Participant by the Corporation, up to 100% of the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock at the time such shares were delivered to the Participant pursuant to the Performance Units during and after such fiscal year.
The Board or the Committee, as the case may be, shall determine in its sole discretion the date of occurrence of such action or omission, the percentage of the Performance Units that shall be forfeited and the percentage of the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock delivered pursuant to the Performance Units that must be repaid to the Corporation. 19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 20. Section Headings. The section headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to alter or affect any provision hereof. 21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California without regard to conflict of law principles thereunder. 6
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Joseph M. Zubretsky, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019 of Molina Healthcare, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, the report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by the report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in the report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in the report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period for which this report is
being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by the report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in the report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
to the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
 

   

Dated: July 31, 2019  /s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky

  Joseph M. Zubretsky
  Chief Executive Officer, President and Director



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Thomas L. Tran, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019 of Molina Healthcare, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, the report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by the report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in the report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in the report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period for which this report is
being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by the report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in the report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
to the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

   

Dated: July 31, 2019  /s/ Thomas L. Tran

  Thomas L. Tran
  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the report of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019 (the “Report”), I, Joseph M. Zubretsky, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

   

Dated: July 31, 2019  /s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky
  Joseph M. Zubretsky
  Chief Executive Officer, President and Director



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the report of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019 (the “Report”), I, Thomas L. Tran, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

   

Dated: July 31, 2019  /s/ Thomas L. Tran

  Thomas L. Tran
  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer


